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05.08.2020 

To, 

The Listing Department, 

BSE Limited, 

Floor 25, P. J. Towers, 

Mumbai 400 001 

SSE Scrip Code: - 513642 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Sub: Submission of 28th Annual Report for the financial year 2019-20 along with Notice of 28th 

Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

This is to inform you that the 28th Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Company will be held on 

Friday, 28th August, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. (1ST), through Video Conferencing ('VC') or Other Audio 

Visual Means ('OAVM'). 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, 

please find attach herewith 28th Annual Report for the financial year 2019-2020 along with Notice 

of 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company, which is being sent to Shareholders through 

electronic mode today i.e., 5th August, 2020. 

The 28th Annual Report for the financial year 2019-20 and Notice of 28th Annual General Meeting of 

the Company is also available on website of the Company: www.axelindia.com. 

Kindly take the same on record. 

Thanking you, 

For Axel Polymers Limited 

Ji~dhVi 
Company Secretary 
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NOTICE OF 28Th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 28th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of the Axel Polymers Limited will be held on Friday, 
28th August 2020 at the Registered Office of the Company at S No. 309, Village - Mokshi, Sankarda-Savli Road, Tal. Savli, Dist, Vadodara -
391780 Gujarat. at 10.00 a.m. through Video Conferencing (VC)/ other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following Business:  
 

Ordinary Business: - 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on 31.03.2020 together with the Reports of the 
Auditors’ and Board’s thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Gaurav Thanky having (DIN: 02565340), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself 
for reappointment. 

 

Special Business: -  
 

3. To approve reappointment of and remuneration to Mr. Gaurav Thanky (DIN: - 02565340) as a Managing Director  
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203, Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable provisions if any of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(‘LODR’) [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force], Mr. Gaurav Thanky, be and is, 
hereby re-appointed as Managing Director of the Company for a period of three years with effect from 1st October 2020, at a 
remuneration of Rs. 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lacs only) per month and other perquisites and on the terms and conditions as set out in 
the Draft Agreement including remuneration as approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Regulation 17(6)(e) of LODR, as also applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
rules made thereunder and other laws applicable, if any [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the 
time being in force] as also pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of 
Directors of the Company, APPROVAL be and is hereby accorded, to the payment of remuneration to Mr. Gaurav Thanky (belonging to 
promoter group) as a Managing Director on aforesaid terms and conditions notwithstanding: 
 

the annual remuneration payable to him exceeds Rs. 5 Crores or 2.5 percent of the net profits of the Company calculated as per the 
provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, whichever is higher,  
        OR 
the aggregate annual remuneration of all the Executive Directors exceeds 5 percent of the net profits of the Company calculated as 
per the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of no profit or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the currency of his tenure, the 
remuneration as aforesaid will be paid as minimum remuneration. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT All the Directors and Key managerial Personnel of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to 
do all such acts, deeds and things, including to enter into such agreement(s), deed(s) of amendment(s) or any such document(s), as 
may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution.” 

 

4. To approve reappointment of and remuneration to Mr. A. B. Bodhanwala (DIN: - 00421362) as a Director – CFO. 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203, Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable provisions if any of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015(‘LODR’) [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force], Mr. A. B. Bodhanwala, be 
and is, hereby re-appointed as Director and CFO of the Company for a period of three years with effect from 1st October, 2020, at a 
remuneration of Rs. 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lacs only) per month and other perquisites and on the terms and conditions as set out in 
the Draft Agreement including remuneration as approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors. 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Regulation 17(6)(e) of LODR, as also applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
rules made thereunder and other laws applicable, if any [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the 
time being in force] as also pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of 
Directors of the Company, APPROVAL be and is hereby accorded, to the payment of remuneration to Mr. A. B. Bodhanwala (belonging 
to promoter group) as a Director and CFO on aforesaid terms and conditions notwithstanding: 
 
the annual remuneration payable to him exceeds Rs. 5 Crores or 2.5 percent of the net profits of the Company calculated as per the 
provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, whichever is higher,  
        OR 
the aggregate annual remuneration of all the Executive Directors exceeds 5 percent of the net profits of the Company calculated as 
per the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of no profit or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the currency of his tenure, the 
remuneration as aforesaid will be paid as minimum remuneration. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT All the Directors and Key managerial Personnel of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to 
do all such acts, deeds and things, including to enter into such agreement(s), deed(s) of amendment(s) or any such document(s), as 
may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution.” 
 

 



5. To approve significant transactions and arrangements entered by the Company with its Related Parties: 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 6A and 
15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 and other Rules applicable, if any, [including any statutory 
modification(s) or re- enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force] and subject to Regulation 23 and other regulations, applicable 
if any, of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 consent of the members be and is hereby accorded 
to the Board of Directors to enter into an agreement with several related parties as mentioned in the explanatory statement of the 
notice for purchase / sale of goods and services.” 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to give effect to 
this resolution. " 

   
Date: 10.07.2020                                                                                                                           For and on behalf of Board of 
Place: Mokshi                                                                                                                                         Axel Polymers Limited              
 

Sd/- 
 

                                                  B. K. Bodhanwala 
                                                      Chairman 

                                                   DIN: 00421717 
NOTES: 
 

1. Keeping in View the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic requiring social distancing to be followed, circular no. 14/2020 dated 
April 08, 2020, circular no. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and circular no.20/2020 dated May, 05, 2020 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) read with circular no. SEBI/HO/CFO/CMDI/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May, 12, 2020 inter alia allow conducting 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing  (VC) / other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) and dispensing with the 
personal presence of members. Accordingly, the 28th Annual general Meeting of the Company will be held through VC/OAVM in terms 
of aforesaid circulars and any other issued/ to be issued if any, in the regards. Hence, members of the Company can attend and 
participate in the AGM through VC / OAVM is annexed and available at the Company’s website: www.axelindia.com.  

 

2. The helpline number regarding any query/assistance for login/ e-voting and participation in the AGM through VC is Tel: 022-49186175 
or Email id:  instameet@linkintime.co.in. (InstaMeet Support Desk). 

 

3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 
under Section 103 of the Act. 

 

4. Since, the AGM is being conducted through VC/OAVM in terms of aforesaid circular the facility for appointment of proxies by the 
Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice and the 
Route Map for AGM venue is not annexed in this Notice. However, body Corporate shareholders may appoint representative for 
voting through remote e-voting or for participation and voting in the meeting held through VC/OAVM. 

 

5. Corporate members are requested to send at cs@axelindia.com for voting/attending annual general meeting, a duly certified copy of 
the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, pursuant to Section 113 of 
the Companies Act. 

 

6. Member seeking information are requested to visit at www.axelindia.com  
 

7. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, telephone / mobile 
numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and 
branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form 
and to Link Intime India Private Limited, (Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents) in case the shares are held by them in physical 
form. 

 

8. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares 
held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-
13. Members are requested to submit the said form to their DP in case the shares are held in electronic form and to Link Intime India 
Private Limited in case the shares are held in physical form. 

 

9. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the Special Business to be transacted 
at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto.  

 

10. The relevant details as required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read 
with Clause 1.2.5. Of Secretarial Standards- 2, of persons seeking appointment / re-appointment as Directors under Item No. 2,3, and 4 
of the Notice, are also annexed to the Notice. 

 

11. The Register of Members and Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Monday 17th August 2020 to Friday, 28th 
August 2020, (both days inclusive). 

 

12. Shareholders holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio, are requested to write to the Company or to the office 
of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, Branch Office: B 102-103, Shangrila Complex, 1st Floor, 
Opp. HDFC Bank, Nr. Radhakrishna Char Rasta, Akota, Vadodara – 300 020. 

 
 



13. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual 
Report for Financial Year 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered 
with the Company or the Depository Participant(s). Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report for Financial Year 2019-20 
will also be available on the Company’s website www.axelindia.com, website of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com, and on the website of Link Intime India Private Limited. Members can attend and participate in the Annual 
General Meeting through VC/OAVM facility only. 

 

14. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 
participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their 
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit 
their PAN details to the Company or to link intime India Private Limited. 

 

15. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change in address 
or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. 
Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified. 

 

16. Registration of email ID and Bank Account details: 
 

In case the shareholder’s email ID is already registered with the Company/its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent “RTA”/Depositories, log 
in details for e-voting are being sent on the registered email address. 
 

In case the shareholder has NOT REGISTERED his/her/their email address with the Company/its RTA/ Depositories and or not updated 
the Bank Account, the following instructions to be followed: 
 

Kindly log in to the website of our RTA, Link Intime India Private Limited., www.linkintime.co.in under Investor Services > Email/Bank 
detail Registration - fill in the details and upload the required documents and submit.     OR 
 

In the case of Shares held in Demat mode: 
 

The shareholder may please contact the Depository Participant (“DP”) and register the email address and bank account details in the 
demat account as per the process followed and advised by the DP. 

 

17. The Register of Directors' and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode. Members can inspect the same by 
sending an email to cs@axelindia.com. 

 

18. Members are requested to advise, quoting their Folio Number(s), the change of address, if any, immediately to the Company at its 
Registered Office: Secretarial Department, Axel Polymers Limited, S No. 309, Vill. - Mokshi, Sankarda-Savli Road, Tal. Savli, Dist, 
Vadodara -391780 Gujarat Tel: +91 2667 – 244395/244438 E–mail: cs@axelindia.com and also to respective Depository Participant 
(DP), in case the shares are held in Demat Form. 

 

19. At the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 14.09.2017, the members approved appointment of M/S Mukund & 
Rohit, Chartered Accountants, Vadodara having Firm registration no. 113375W as a Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office 
for a period of 5 (Five) years from the conclusion of that 25th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 30th Annual General 
Meeting, subject to ratification of their appointment by members at every Annual General Meeting if so required by the Companies 
Act 2013. Vide notification dated May 7, 2018; the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has done away with the requirement of seeking 
ratification of members for appointment of auditors at every Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for 
ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the 27th Annual General Meeting. 

 
20. Members may also note that the Notice of the 28th AGM and the Annual Report for Financial Year 2019-20 will also be available on 

the Company’s website, www.axelindia.com, website of the Stock Exchange, i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com, and on the 
website of Link Intime India Private Limited at https:/instavote.linkintime.co.in. 

 
21. Voting through electronic means (Remote E-voting): 
 

1.  In compliance with Section 108 of the Act, read with the corresponding rules, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”), the Company has provided a facility to its members to 
exercise their votes electronically through the electronic voting (“e-voting”) facility provided by the Link Intime India Private Limited, 
on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. Members who have casted their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may 
participate in the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. The manner of voting remotely by members holding shares 
in dematerialized mode, physical mode and for members who have not registered their email addresses is provided in the 
instructions for e-voting section which forms part of this Notice.  

 

2. The e-voting period will commence from 25th August 2020 at 09:00 a.m. (IST) and will end at 05:00 p.m. (IST) on 27th August 2020. 
The e-voting module will be disabled on 27th August 2020 at 05:00 p.m. (IST). Facility of venue voting system electronically would 
also be available. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date, being 14th August 2020. 

 

3.  The Board has appointed CS Devesh A Pathak of M/S. Devesh Pathak & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (M. No. 4559 
and COP No. 2306), as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

4. The Register of Members and Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Monday 17th August 2020 to Friday, 28th 
August 2020, (both days inclusive). 

 



5. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on Friday, 14th August 2020, being the 
cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. 

 

6. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not been titled to 
cast their vote again. 

 

7. The facility for e-voting at the AGM will be available and the Members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by 
remote e-Voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through e-voting. 

 

8. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the annual general meeting, would first unblock the e-voting at 
the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make within a period not exceeding two (2) days from 
the conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any and submit forth 
with to the Chairman of the Company or a person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the same.  

 

9. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.axelindia.com and on the 
website of Link Intime India Private Limited immediately after the result is declared. The Company shall simultaneously forward the 
results to BSE Limited (“BSE”), where the shares of the Company are listed. 

 

10.  The Resolution shall be deemed to be passed on the date of AGM i.e. August 28, 2020 subject to receipt of sufficient votes. 
 
Instruction for E-Voting and joining AGM are as follows: 
 

A. Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders: 
 

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in   
 

 
Those who are first time users of LIIPL e-voting platform or holding shares in physical mode have to mandatorily generate their own 
Password, as under:  
 

 Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: -  
 
A. User ID: Enter your User ID  
 

•  Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
•  Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID 
    followed   by 8 Digit Client ID 
•  Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide  Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company  
 

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) 
(Members who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/   
Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.  

 

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI)  
       (As recorded with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)  
 

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your DP/Company.  
 

• Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide either ‘C’ or ‘D’, above  
• Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide ‘D’, above  
• Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, 
   shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above  
 

 Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special Character (@!#$&*), at 
least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).  
 

 Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated). 
 

NOTE: If Shareholders/ members are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e-Voting system of LIIPL: 
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then they can use their existing password to login. 
 

 

2. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.  
3. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’.  
4. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon.  
5. E-voting page will appear.  
6. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire 

Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).  
7. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm 

your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.  
 
 



8. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-voting system of LIIPL 
at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also required to 
upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for the 
Scrutinizer to verify the same.  
 

If you have forgotten the password:  
 

          o Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’  
          o Enter User ID select Mode and Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on ‘Submit’. 
 

 In case shareholders/ members is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered  
e- mail address.  

 Shareholders/ members can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about  
the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above.  

 The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one 
alphabet and at least one capital letter.  

 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential.  

 

For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the resolutions contained in the 
Notice. 
 

During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the resolution(s) for a particular 
“Event”. 
 

Shareholders/ members holding multiple folios/demat account shall choose the voting process separately for each of the folios/demat 
account. 
 

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding e-voting, they may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and 
InstaVote e-Voting manual available at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or send an email to 
enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 –4918 6000. 
 

B. Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 
 

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in 
 

 

 Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: -  
 

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No 
 

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
 Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with the Company  

 

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN with the Depository 
Participant (DP)/Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.  

 

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.  
 

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company.  
 

 Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the meeting). 
 
Please refer the instructions (annexure) for the software requirements and kindly ensure to install the same on the device which would 
be used to attend the meeting. Please read the instructions carefully and participate in the meeting. You may also call upon the InstaMeet 
Support Desk for any support on the dedicated number provided to you in the instruction/ InstaMEET website. 
 

C. Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 
 

1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 3 days in advance with the company on the 
cs@axelindia.com created for the general meeting.  

 

2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the client.  
 

3. Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting. 
 

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting. 
 

5. Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video mode and audio of your 
device. 

 

Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name and serial number for 
speaking.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



D. Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 
 

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members who have not exercised 
their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under: 
 

1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote” 
 

2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered email Id) received 
during registration for InstaMEET and click on 'Submit'.  

 

3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ Against” for voting.  
 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares (which represents no. of 
votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against'. 

 

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation box 
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify 
your vote.  

 

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently. 
 

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not casted their 
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 
facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be 
eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during 
the meeting.  
 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband for better 
experience. 
 

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting. 
 
Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting via Mobile Hotspot 
may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.  It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection 
to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to instameet@linkintime.co.in or 
contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175. 
 
InstaMeet Support Desk 
Link Intime India Private Limited 
 

 

ANNEXURE - Guidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Private Limited:  InstaMEET 
 
For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Private Limited. InstaMEET, shareholders/ members who 
are registered as speakers for the event are requested to download and install the Webex application in advance by following the 
instructions as under: 
 
a) Please download and install the Webex  application by clicking on the link https://www.webex.com/downloads.html/   
or  
 

b) If you do not want to download and install the Webex application, you may join the meeting by following the process mentioned 
as under:  

 
Step 1  Enter your First Name, Last Name and Email ID and click on Join Now.  
    1 (A)  If you have already installed the Webex application on your device, join the meeting by clicking on Join Now  
    1 (B)  If Webex application is not installed, a new page will appear giving you an option to either Add Webex to chrome or 

Run a temporary application.  
Click on Run a temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Click on this exe file to run the application and 
join the meeting by clicking on Join Now  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                    
ANNEXURE 

 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015: READ WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: - 
 

Name of the Director Mr. Gaurav Thanky Mr. A. B. Bodhanwala 

Designation Managing Director Director & CFO 

DIN 02565340 00421362 
Age 46 years 60 years 
Date of Birth 15.01.1974  19.06.1960 
Nationality Indian Indian 
Date of Appointment 01.06.2014* 01.03.1993* 
Qualification Engineer 

 

Chartered Accountant 

Expertise Product Development Finance 

Directorship in the other Board Companies as on 
31.03.2020 (Excluding Axel Polymers Limited) 

Dhara Petrochemical Private Limited N.A. 

Chairmanship/Membership of Committee of the 
Board of the Listed Companies in which he/she is a 
Director as on 31.03.2020 

N.A. 1. Audit Committee 

Shareholding in the Company as on 31.03.2020 2,23,867 1,58,100 
 

Relationship with any Director(s) of the Company N.A. He is related to Mr. B.K. Bodhanwala 
and Mrs. Minnie A. Bodhanwala 

 
    *Date of Appointment as a Director 
 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 
 

Item No. 3  
 

Considering valuable contributions as well as responsibilities shouldered by Mr. Gaurav Thanky as Managing Director, your Directors at 
their Meeting held on 10.07.2020 have approved the reappointment of Mr. Gaurav Thanky as an Managing Director with effect from 1st 
October, 2020 for a period of three years ending on 30th September, 2023 in accordance with provisions of Section 196, 197 & 203 read 
with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, as approved by Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 
 

Details of major terms & conditions of reappointment are as follows: 
 

(A) Basic Salary : Rs. 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lakhs only per month) 
(B) Perquisite : As Below          
 

PART – A 
 

 EXPENSES: Reimbursement of expenses on Gas, Electricity, Water, house furnishing etc. will be paid at actuals.  
 

 MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT: Reimbursement of Medical Expenses actually incurred for self and family and Medical Premium for the 
health of self and family.  

 

 EDUCATIONAL EXPENSES: Reimbursement of School / College Fees and Travelling expenses from place of study to Home which is 
actually incurred. This shall be limited to 2 children only. 

 

 LEAVE TRAVEL CONCESSION: For self and family to and from any place in India or abroad, once in a year in accordance with the rules 
of the Company. 

 

 CLUB FEES: Fee paid to Club, subject to a maximum of two clubs will be allowed, provided no admission or life membership fees shall 
be paid. 

 

 PERSONAL ACCIDENT INSURANCE: Personal Accidental premium for self. 
 

 WATCHMAN ETC: Free service of a sweeper, Gardener, and a Watchman at the residence of the appointee. 
 

However, aggregate monetary value of aforesaid perquisites in this part shall not exceed Rs. 24,00,000/- per annum. 
 

PART – B 
 

 Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund subject to a ceiling of 12% of the Basic Salary as mentioned above. 
 Company’s contribution towards superannuation fund, if any, subject to a ceiling of 15% of the Gross Salary. 
 Gratuity: Payable at a rate not exceeding one half month’s salary for each competed year of service as per rules of the Company. 
 Leave: On full pay and allowances as per rules of the Company, but not more than one month’s leave for every eleven months of 

services. Leave not availed of shall be allowed to be carried forward and to be encashed at the end of the tenure. 
 

 



 
PART – C 
 
 Car  : Free use of Company’s car with driver for Company’s business. 
 Telephone : Free telephone facility at residence and cell phone. 
 Entertainment Expenses:  Reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually incurred. 

 
Minimum Remuneration: Notwithstanding anything contained, wherein in any financial year, during the currency of the tenure of Mr. 
Gaurav Thanky as Managing Director of the Company, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay 
remuneration by way of salary and perquisites as specified above. 
 

Other terms and conditions:  
 

a. In the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure of the Chairman, salary and perquisites subject to 
the limits stipulated under Schedule V read with Section 196 and 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, are payable.  

 

b. “Family” means the spouse and dependent children of Mr. Gaurav Thanky 
 

c. Leave with full pay and allowances shall be allowed as per the Company’s rules.  
 

d. No sitting fees shall be paid to the Chairman for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees thereof.  
 

e. He shall be liable to retire by rotation.  
 

f.       The perquisites as listed in Part (A) above shall be valued as per the Income Tax Rules, 1962, as may be applicable. All other existing 
terms and conditions for the re-appointment shall remain unchanged. 

 

Newly inserted sub regulation 6 (e) to Regulation 17 to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015(‘LODR’) 
requires approval of shareholders by way of Special Resolution in following circumstances. 
 

“the payment of any fees or compensation to executive directors who are promoters or members of the promoter group, shall be subject 
to the approval of the shareholders by special resolution, if: 
 

a) the annual remuneration payable to such executive director exceeds Rs. 5 crore or 2.5 percent of the net profits of the listed entity, 
whichever is higher; or 
 

b) where there is more than one such director, the aggregate annual remuneration to such directors exceeds 5 per cent of the net profits 
of the listed entity.” 
 

Since Mr. Gaurav Thanky, a Managing Director is an Executive Director belonging to Promoter group, in order to pay remuneration as 
aforesaid, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors at their meeting held 
on 10.07.2020 your Directors recommend and seek your approval to the resolutions as set out in item no. 3 of the accompanying notice 
way of Special Resolution pursuant to newly inserted Regulation 17(6)(e) of LODR also additional information required as per Schedule V 
to the Companies Act, 2013 is available in Annexure to the Explanatory Statement. 
 

Except, Mr. Gaurav Thanky and their relatives, none of the Director/ Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives shall be deemed to be 
interested or concerned financially or otherwise in the aforesaid resolution. 
 

ANNEXURE- A 
 

 

Additional information required as per Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, relating to Item no. 3 of the Notice of Annual General 
Meeting. 
 

I. General information:   
 

(i) Nature of Industry:  Polymer Compounding. 
 

(ii) Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: - Already commenced. 
 

(iii) In Case of new Companies expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by financial institution approved in 
the prospectus: - N.A. 

(iv)  
                                                                                                                 
 
 
 
 

(v) Foreign investments or collaborators, if any: Nil 
 

II. Information about the Appointee Director:  
 

1. Background details of the Managerial Personnel:  
 

Mr. Gaurav Thanky is an engineer by profession, having 2 decades of experience in the plastic industry. He has launched APL’s own 
brand i.e. “Thermoplastic Compounds, Blends & Alloys” and developed prospective clients across various sectors for deeper market 
penetration. 

 

2. Past remuneration: Rs. 18,00,000/- 
 

3. Recognition or awards: The Company has no information to offer.  
 

4. Job Profile and suitability: Having regard to his rich and very vast experience and contributions made so far for the Company in parity 
with the job profile, your Directors are of the opinion that he is suitable to hold the position. 

 

Particulars 2019-20 
Effective capital Rs. 1,98,89,808 
Total Income Rs. 22,91,95,047 
Profit after Tax Rs. 9,35,819 



5. Proposed remuneration: As aforesaid in the explanatory statement. 
 

6. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile of the position and person: The remuneration 
as proposed is comparable to that drawn by the peers in the similar capacity in the industry and is commensurate with the size of the 
Company, responsibilities shouldered by him and the industry benchmarks. 

 

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or relationship with Managerial Personnel, if any: He does not have any 
pecuniary relationship with the Company or any relationship with any Managerial Personnel. 

 

III. Other Information:  
  

a. Reasons of loss or inadequate profit:   
 

      On account of increase in stiff competition in Polymers / Engineering Plastic Market from Organized and Unorganized Sectors, and 
other external factors such as recession & general economic slowdown, Tax reforms the volatile market conditions of Raw Materials, 
unstable demand of Polymers, Client less trustworthy, crunch of Working Capital are among other factors, adversely affecting the 
Company’s performance, leaving reduced margin for the Company. 

 

b. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for Improvement: 
 

      While the external factors beyond the control of the Company, Company is focusing on Internal Factors, for that the Company has 
initiated certain steps such as better product mix, cost control, continual improvement in Process & Product Quality, reduce the credit 
cycle period on credit sales which reduce the dependence on external borrowing, focusing on maximum profit margin product, 
maintain the quality of the product and improving efficiency and reduce power cost per Kg production etc. Though, the prices of raw 
materials and products are influenced by external factors, the Company is making all possible efforts to hedge and improve the 
margins. 

 

c. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms: 
 

The Company is very conscious about improvement in productivity and undertakes constant measures to improve it. However, it is 
extremely difficult in the present scenario to predict profits in measurable terms. 

 

  IV Disclosures: 
 
 

  Remuneration package of Mr. Gaurav Thanky has been set out as above. 
 

Item No. 4  
 

Considering valuable contributions as well as responsibilities shouldered by Mr. A. B. Bodhanwala as an Director - CFO, your Directors at 
their Meeting held on 10.07.2020 have approved the reappointment of Mr. A. B. Bodhanwala as an Director - CFO with effect from 1st 
October, 2020 for a period of three years ending on 30th September, 2023 in accordance with provisions of Section 196, 197 & 203 read 
with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, as approved by Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 
 

Details of major terms & conditions of reappointment are as follows: 
 

(A) Basic Salary : Rs. 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lakhs only per month) 
(B) Perquisite : As Below          
 

PART – A 
 

 EXPENSES: Reimbursement of expenses on Gas, Electricity, Water, house furnishing etc. will be paid at actuals.  
 

 MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT: Reimbursement of Medical Expenses actually incurred for self and family and Medical Premium for the 
health of self and family.  

 

 EDUCATIONAL EXPENSES: Reimbursement of School / College Fees and Travelling expenses from place of study to Home which is 
actually incurred. This shall be limited to 2 children only. 

 

 LEAVE TRAVEL CONCESSION: For self and family to and from any place in India or abroad, once in a year in accordance with the rules of 
the Company. 

 

 CLUB FEES: Fee paid to Club, subject to a maximum of two clubs will be allowed, provided no admission or life membership fees shall 
be paid. 

 

 PERSONAL ACCIDENT INSURANCE: Personal Accidental premium for self. 
 

 WATCHMAN ETC: Free service of a sweeper, Gardener, and a Watchman at the residence of the appointee. 
 

However, aggregate monetary value of aforesaid perquisites in this part shall not exceed Rs. 24,00,000/- per annum. 
 

PART – B 
 

 Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund subject to a ceiling of 12% of the Basic Salary as mentioned above. 
 Company’s contribution towards superannuation fund, if any, subject to a ceiling of 15% of the Gross Salary. 
 Gratuity: Payable at a rate not exceeding one half month’s salary for each competed year of service as per rules of the Company. 
 Leave: On full pay and allowances as per rules of the Company, but not more than one month’s leave for every eleven months of 

services. Leave not availed of shall be allowed to be carried forward and to be encashed at the end of the tenure. 
 

PART – C 
 

 Car  : Free use of Company’s car with driver for Company’s business. 
 Telephone : Free telephone facility at residence and cell phone. 
 Entertainment Expenses:  Reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually incurred. 

 



Minimum Remuneration: Notwithstanding anything contained, wherein in any financial year, during the currency of the tenure of Mr. A. B. 
Bodhanwala as an Director - CFO of the Company, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay 
remuneration by way of salary and perquisites as specified above. 
 

Other terms and conditions:  
 

a.  In the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure of the Chairman, salary and perquisites subject 
to the limits stipulated under Schedule V read with Section 196 and 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, are payable.  

 

b. “Family” means the spouse and dependent children of Mr. A. B. Bodhanwala 
 

c.  Leave with full pay and allowances shall be allowed as per the Company’s rules.  
 

d. No sitting fees shall be paid to the Chairman for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees thereof.  
 

e. He shall be liable to retire by rotation.  
 

f. The perquisites as listed in Part (A) above shall be valued as per the Income Tax Rules, 1962, as may be applicable. All other existing 
terms and conditions for the re-appointment shall remain unchanged. 

 

Newly inserted sub regulation 6 (e) to Regulation 17 to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015(‘LODR’) 
requires approval of shareholders by way of Special Resolution in following circumstances. 
 

“the payment of any fees or compensation to executive directors who are promoters or members of the promoter group, shall be subject 
to the approval of the shareholders by special resolution, if: 
 

a) the annual remuneration payable to such executive director exceeds Rs. 5 crore or 2.5 percent of the net profits of the listed entity, 
whichever is higher; or 
 

b) where there is more than one such director, the aggregate annual remuneration to such directors exceeds 5 per cent of the net profits 
of the listed entity.” 
 

Since Mr. A. B. Bodhanwala, a Director - CFO is an Executive Director belonging to Promoter group, in order to pay remuneration as 
aforesaid, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors at their meeting held 
on 10.07.2020 your Directors recommend and seek your approval to the resolutions as set out in item no. 4 of the accompanying notice 
way of Special Resolution pursuant to newly inserted Regulation 17(6)(e) of LODR also additional information required as per Schedule V 
to the Companies Act, 2013 is available in Annexure to the Explanatory Statement. 
 

Except, Mr. A. B. Bodhanwala, Mr. B. k. Bodhanwala, and Dr. (Mrs.) M. A. Bodhanwala and their relatives no other Director/ Key 
Managerial Personnel or their relatives shall be deemed to be interested or concerned financially or otherwise in the aforesaid resolution. 
 

 

ANNEXURE- A 
 

Additional information required as per Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, relating to Item no. 4 of the Notice of Annual General 
Meeting. 
 

I. General information:   
 

(i) Nature of Industry:  Polymer Compounding. 
 

(ii) Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: - Already commenced. 
 

(iii) In Case of new Companies expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by financial institution approved 
in the prospectus: - N.A. 

 

(iv)  
                                                                                                                 
 
 
 
 

(v) Foreign investments or collaborators, if any: Nil 
 

II. Information about the Appointee Director:  
 

1. Background details of the Managerial Personnel:  
 

Mr. A.B. Bodhanwala is a Chartered Accountant by profession and is the promoter of Axel Polymers Limited. He graduated from M.S. 
University of Baroda and has a long experience of 33 years in the field of Finance, Law and Corporate Activities. He also has a wide 
experience in Audit and Accounts. 

 

2. Past remuneration: Rs. 24,00,240/- 
 

3. Recognition or awards: The Company has no information to offer.  
 

4. Job Profile and suitability: Having regard to his rich and very vast experience and contributions made so far for the Company in parity 
with the job profile, your Directors are of the opinion that he is suitable to hold the position. 

 

5. Proposed remuneration: As aforesaid in the explanatory statement. 
 

6. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile of the position and person: The remuneration 
as proposed is comparable to that drawn by the peers in the similar capacity in the industry and is commensurate with the size of the 
Company, responsibilities shouldered by him and the industry benchmarks. 

 

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or Managerial Personnel relationship with, if any: He has pecuniary 
relationship as aforesaid. He is relative of Mr. B. K. Bodhanwala, and Dr. (Mrs.) Minnie A. Bodhanwala    

Particulars 2019-20 
Effective capital Rs. 1,98,89,808 
Total Income Rs. 22,91,95,047 
Profit after Tax Rs. 9,35,819 



III. Other Information:    

A. Reasons of loss or inadequate profit:   
 

On account of increase in stiff competition in Polymers / Engineering Plastic Market from Organized and Unorganized Sectors, and 
other external factors such as recession & general economic slowdown, Tax reforms the volatile market conditions of Raw Materials, 
unstable demand of Polymers, Client less trustworthy, crunch of Working Capital are among other factors, adversely affecting the 
Company’s performance, leaving reduced margin for the Company. 

 

B. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for Improvement: 
 

While the external factors beyond the control of the Company, Company is focusing on Internal Factors, for that the Company has 
initiated certain steps such as better product mix, cost control, continual improvement in Process & Product Quality, reduce the credit 
cycle period on credit sales which reduce the dependence on external borrowing, focusing on maximum profit margin product, 
maintain the quality of the product and improving efficiency and reduce power cost per Kg production etc. Though, the prices of raw 
materials and products are influenced by external factors, the Company is making all possible efforts to hedge and improve the 
margins. 

 

C. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms: 
 

The Company is very conscious about improvement in productivity and undertakes constant measures to improve it. However, it is 
extremely difficult in the present scenario to predict profits in measurable terms. 

 

  IV Disclosures: 
 

      Remuneration package of Mr. A. B. Bodhanwala has been set out as above. 
 

Item No. 5  
 

In terms of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 6A and 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its powers) 
Rules, 2014 and other Rules, applicable, if any and Regulation 23 and other regulations, if any, of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 any transaction entered into between related parties for sale, purchase or supply of any goods or 
materials, availing or rendering of any services exceeding 10% of the turnover as per latest audited financial results require approval of the 
members of the Company by way of an Ordinary Resolution. Then the Board was informed that it would be expedient to recommend the 
following resolution to the members of the company. 
 

Since, the proposed transactions of the Company with related parties viz. Dhara Petrochemicals Private Limited and VR Industries mention 
below would be in excess of 10% of the turnover of the latest audited financial result, the board recommends your approvals by way of an 
Ordinary resolution. 
 

Particulars of the transactions, which are proposed to be entered into by the Company are provide herein below 
 

Sr.no. Name of Related 
Party 

Name of director / KMP who is 
related and nature of relationship 

Nature, material terms and particulars 
of contracts or arrangements  

Amounts (Rs.) 

1. Dhara 
Petrochemicals 
Private Limited 

Mr. Gaurav Thanky Director/ KMP 
of the company is a Director and a 
member of the related party 

Purchase of Various types of plastic resin 
additives, etc. 
 

Sale of Compounds PPE/PBT/PA & Other   
 

Contract for 3 Years 
 

Not exceeding Rs. 
50 Crores per 
annum 

2 VR Industries  Mr. Gaurav Thanky Director/ KMP 
of the company is a partner of the 
related party 

Purchase of Various types of plastic resin  
 

Sale of Compounds PPE/PBT/PA & Other   
 

Contract for 3 Years 

Not exceeding Rs. 
50 Crores per 
annum 

 
Accordingly, your Directors seek and recommend your approval to the resolution as set out in Item no. 5 of the accompanying notice by 
way of Ordinary Resolution. 
 

Neither Directors/ KMP of the Company nor their relatives shall be deemed to be concerned or interested, financially or otherwise except 
the concerned director for particulars transactions with respective related party. The board of Directors recommends the proposed 
resolutions for acceptance of member. 
 
 
Date: 10.07.2020                                                                                                                           For and on behalf of Board of 
Place: Mokshi                                                                                                                            Axel Polymers Limited 
  

Sd/- 
 

                                                  B. K. Bodhanwala 
                                                       Chairman 

                                                 DIN: 00421717 
 



BOARD'S REPORT 

Dear Members, 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 28th Board's Report of your Compa ny together with the 
Financial Sta tements for the financial year ended on 31.03.2020. 

1. FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL RESULTS 

The Summa ry of the financial performance of the Company for the yea r-ended 31.03.2020 compared to 
the previous year is as follows : 

(Rs in La khs ) 

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019 

Revenue from Operations 2289.84 2437.40 

Other Income 2.10 1.89 

Total Income 2291.19 2439.29 

Profit/ floss) before Depreciation and Tax 44.22 76.83 
(less): Depreciation (36.33) (33.34) 

Profit/f l oss) before Tax 7.88 43.49 

Add/ (less) : Tax Expenses - --
i. Current Tax 1.04 3.32 

II. Deferred Tax (1.48) Nil 

Net Profit/f l oss) for the year 9.36 46.81 

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (Net of Tax) 3.63 46.85 

I Add/ (less): Balance Brought Forward (236.82) (283.67) 

BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD TO BALANCE SHEET (231.10) (236.82) 

During the year under review, your Company posted a total income of Rs . 2291.19 l acs as against Rs . 
2437.40/ - in the previous year registering a decline of about 6 %. The global business sentiment in the 
last f inancia l year was low. Demand was down since September 2019; which was further pulled down 
due to the COVID 19 World Pandemic. Situation was deteriorating and "Work from Home" and 
" lockdown" was implemented in March 2020. 

2. DIVIDEND 

By keeping in view, the carry forward losses of the Company, your Directors do not recomme nd any 
dividend . 

3. COVID 19 PANDEMIC APPROACH & IMPACT 

The global health pandemic disrupted daily lives, livelihoods, businesses and economies world over, 
orchestrating an uncertain situation on account of endless lockdowns of cities and coun tries. This 
un precedented event caused an operational and financial dent to businesses of all sizes and statures, 
cha llenging frameworks and continuity plans. To ensure safety of people and continuity of operations, 
businesses resorted to immediate viable measures like remote working and cost reductions to stay afloat 
and sustain 

With restrictions easing and comme rcial activity gradually picking up across the country, business 
sentiment is showing positive signs of recovery. But will it ever be like before ? 

The pandemic has forced change: economic, soc ietal and commercial. It is imperative to reva luate 
ex isting plans, remodel to sustain, factor in resilience to overcome future challenges of similar velocity, 
and most importantly adapt to the 'New Normal'. 

I 
I 



To help the organisation regain lost ground and build a stronger business foundation in the new normal, 
your Directors have developed a Recovery model, elaborating a three-stage process, encouraging 
Rethinking original business and commercial assumptions, Reprioritising obligations and Addressing 
issues to adapt and thrive. 

Consequent to the nationwide lockdown announced by the Government of India, the Company Plant and 
offices were shut down from March 23, 2020 onwards. Since the gradual easing of the lockdown from 
2Sth April 2020 onwards, and in line with the various directions of the Governments, the Company's 
plant have commenced operations in a phased manner, in line with the market demands. The COVID -
19 crises has caused significant disturbance and slowdown of the economic activities. The Company's 
management has done as assessment of the situations, including the liquidity positions and the 
recoverability and carrying value of all assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020 and concluded that 
there are no material adjustments required in the financial statements as of March 2020. 

However, the impact assessment of Covid-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainty associated 
with its nature and durations .. The Company will continue to monitor any materials changes as the 
situation evolves. 

4. INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARY/JV/ASSOCIATE COMPANY 

Neither the Company has any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company nor any other Company 
has become or ceased to be Subsidiary/Joint Venture/ Associate Company. 

5. TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed amount required to be transferred to Investor Education & 
Protection Fund during the year under review. 

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

No Material changes and Commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred 
between the end of financial year to which this financial statement relates and the date of this report 
and hence not reported . 

7. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN U/S 92(3) OF THE ACT AS PER FORM MGT-9 

The Extract of Annual Return as required under section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and 
Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 in Form MGT-9 is not 
required to annexed to the Board Report pursuant to MCA Notification dated 31.07.2018 and same 
uploaded on website of the Company at given weblink http://axelindia.com/mgt9.html 

8. MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS & APPOINTMENT/ CESSATION OF DIRECTORS OR KMP 

During the Financial Year 2019-20, five meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held. 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 
2013, Mr. Gaurav S. Thanky retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment. 

The Board recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Gaurav S. Thanky retiring director, at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of Company in terms Section 152 of the Act, who in opinion of the 
Board and Nomination and Remuneration Committee fulfills the conditions for reappointment specified 
in the Act and rules made thereunder. 

During the year Mr. Jayendra Desai as an Independent (Non-Executive) Director resigned from the Board 
of Director w.e.f. 17.03.2020. 

-' L 



9. DIRECTORS TRAINING & FAMILIARIZATION 

The Directors are regularly informed during the meetings of the Board and the Committees, of the 
activities of the Company, its operations and issues facing the Polymer Industry. Considering the 
association of the Directors with the Company and their seniority and expertise in their respective areas 
of specialisation and knowledge of the engineering industry, their training and familiarization were 
conducted in the below mentioned areas: 

}> The Roles, Rights, Responsibilities and Duties of Independent Directors 
}> Business Development Strategy and Plans 
}> Changes brought in by the introduction of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 
}> New SEBI Regime - Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 201S 

10. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors of your Company hereby state and 
confirm that: 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended on 31.03.2020, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures; 

(b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year 2019-20 and of the profit of the 
Company for that period; 

(c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

(d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
(e) The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 
(f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

11.AUDITORS 

A. STATUTORY AUDITORS 

The Company's Auditor MIS Mukund & Rohit, Chartered Accountants, Vadodara having registration no. 
113375W were appointed as the Auditor to hold office up to the conclusion of 30th AGM. Pursuant to 
amended Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the requirement of ratification of appointment of 
Auditors at every Annual General Meeting is done away with . Accordingly, no resolution for ratification 
of Auditors is proposed. 

B. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 

Mis Devesh Pathak & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, Vadodara were appointed as 
Secretarial Auditors for conducting secretarial audit for the Financial Year 2019-20. Their report is 
annexed herewith as per Annexure-1 
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22. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

In view of Paid up Capital and Net worth of the Company being lesser than Rs. 10 Crores and Rs. 25 
Crores respectively, Corporate Governance Report as prescribed in Clause C of schedule V to LODR is not 
included in the Annual Report in terms of Regulations 27(2) of LODR. 

23. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as stipulated under Para B of Schedule V of LODR is 
attached as Annexure - 3. 

24. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Mr. Amitabh Thakore and Mr. Amol Samant were the Independent Directors of the Company as on 
31.03.2020 pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(10) of the Act. 

Mr. Jayendra Harshad Desai (DIN: 02213677), Non-executive & Independent Director of the Company, 
has resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f.17.03.2020. 

The Board of Directors of the Company hereby confirms that all the Independent Directors duly 
appointed by the Company have given the declaration and they meet the criteria of Independence as 
provided under Section 149(6) of the Act. 

25. COMMITTEE COMPOSITION 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Composition of the Audit Committee is in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act read with 
Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. 

On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors by its Circular 
Motion Resolution, dated 19.03.2020 & voted with majority, the Audit Committee has been 
reconstituted as below: 

SrNo Name of the Directors Designation Nature of Directorship 

1 Amol Arvind Samant Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director 

2 Jayendra Harshad Desai Member' Non-Executive Independent Directer 

3 Aarasp Bejan Bodhanwala Member Executive Director cum CFO 

4. Amitabh Gajendra Thakore Member" Non-Executive Independent Director 

, Mr. Jayendra Harshad Desai ceased to be a Member of Audit Committee with effect from 17.03.2020. 

" Mr. Amitabh Gajendra Thakore, become a Member of Audit Committee with effect from 18.03.2020 

(Circular Motion Resolution passed with majority dated 19.03.2020) 

The Audit Committee met five times during the period under review. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in line with the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Act read with Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
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On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors by its Circular 
Motion Resolution, dated 19.03.2020 & voted with majority, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee has been reconstituted as below: 

Sr. No Name ofthe Directors Designation Nature of Directorship 

1 Amol Arvind Samant Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director 

2 Jayendra Harshad Desai Member' Non-Executive Independent Director 

3 Minnie Aarasp Bodhanwala Member Non - Executive Director 

4. Amitabh Gajendra Thakore Member·· Non-Executive Independent Director 

, Mr. Jayendra Harshad Desai ceased to be a Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

with effect from 17.03.2020. 

,. Mr. Amitabh Gajendra Thakore, become a Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

with effect from 18.03.2020 (Circular resolution pass with majority dated 19.03.2020) 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met twice during the period under review. 

REMUNERATION POLICY 

The policy of the Company on Director's and KMP's appointment and remuneration, including criteria for 
determining qualifications, independence of Director and other matters is in accordance with Section 
178(3) of the Companies Act- 2013 and the same is available on website of the Company. 

Remuneration to Executive Directors 
The Executive Directors are paid annual Remuneration as under. 

Mr. A.B. Bodhanwala 
Mr. B.K. Bodhanwala 
Mr. G.S. Thanky 

Director & CFO 
Chairman& Whole-Time Director 
Managing Director 

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors 
The other Non-Executive Directors are not paid any Remuneration. 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITIEE 

Rs. 24,00,240/­
Rs. 3,56,333/­
Rs. 18, 00,000/-

Stakeholders Relationship Committee deals with all transfers, transmission etc. as required from time to 
time and all matters pertaining to Investor Complaints in accordance with section 178(5) of the Act read 
with Regulation 20 of LODR. 

On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors by its Circular 
Motion Resolution, dated 19.03.2020 & voted with majority, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is 
reconstituted as below. 

Sr. No Name of the Directors Designation Nature of Directorship 

1 Jayendra Harshad Desai Chairman' Non-Executive Independent Director 

2 Amitabh Gajendra Thakore Chairman" Non-Executive Independent Director 

3 Minnie Aarasp Bodhanwala Member Non - Executive Director 

4 Amol Arvind Samant Member Non-Executive Independent Director 

, Mr. Jayendra Harshad Desai ceased to be a Chairman of Stakeholders Relationship Committee With 
effect from 17.03.2020. 
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•• Mr. Amitabh Gajendra Thakore, become a Chairman of Stakeholders Relationship Committee with 

effect from 18.03.2020 (Circular resolution pass with majority dated 19.03.2020) 

The Committee reviews the performance of the Registrars and Transfer Agent (RTA) and their system of 
dealing with the investors. 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met two time during the period under review. 

26. COST RECORDS 

There is no requirement for Cost Audit & Cost Records, as the Company is not covered within the criteria 
for the same under Section 148 of the Act. 

27. VIGIL MECHANISM 

As per Section 177(9) and (10) of the Act and Regulation 22(1) of LODR, the Company has established 
Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine concerns. Vigil Mechanism also provides 
adequate safeguard against victimization of director(s) or employee(s) and also provides for direct access 
to the chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate and exceptional cases. 

28. NO SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDER PASSED 

There were no significant and material orders passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal impacting the 
going concern status and the Company's Operations in future during the year under review. 

29. REPORTING OF FRAUDS 

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Statutory Auditors or Secretarial Auditor under 
section 143(12) of the Act and Rules framed there under either to the Company or to the Central 
Government. 

30. TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE 

The Company is not required to transfer any amount to its reserves. Hence, no amount is transferred to 
reserves during the year under review. 

31. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There is no change in the nature of business during the year under review. 

32. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

There are adequate Internal Control Systems operating in the Company, which are commensurate with 
the size and operations of the Company. The Audit Committee supervises the checks and control 
exercised and reports any suggestion or deviation on a continuing basis. The Authority and responsibility 
of every employee is defined. 

33. MEDIAN EMPLOYEE DETAILS 

The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 will be made 
available to any member on request. 

34. INSURANCE 

All the properties of the Company have been insured properly and the Company has taken necessary 
general insurance. 
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To , 

ANNEXURES TO THE REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Annexure -1 

Form No. MR-3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule NO.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

The Members, 
AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 
S NO 309, VIL-MOKSHI , SANKARDA-SAVLI ROAD, 
TAL-SAVLI , 
VADODARA, GUJARAT, 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by the Company. Secretarial Audit was conducted in 
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. Based on our verification (electronically only in 
view of COVID-19 advisories) of the AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED's books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 " March , 2020 complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 

We have examined (electronically only in view of COVID-19 advisories) the books, papers, 
minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March , 2020 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (,the Act') and the rules made thereunder; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 

thereunder; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 
and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (,SEBI Act') :-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 1992; [presently: The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.] 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; [presently: The Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018.] 
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(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option 
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 
[presently: The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

(I) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and 
dealing with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009; and 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 1998;[presently: The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India(Buyback of Securities)Regulations,2018) 

(vi) Having regard to the products, processes and locations of the Company as also 
having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on 
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test 
check basis , we further report that the Company has complied with the following 
laws applicable specifically to the Company: 

1. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 
2. The Air (Prevention And Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 
3. The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

I. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India. 

II. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Ltd. including 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('LODR'). 

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balarice of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in 
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any, are 
captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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We further report (by way of information) that during the audit period: 

(a) The Company has not issued any securities during the period under review and 
accordingly 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations, 2008 

were not applicable during the audit period. 

(b) The Company has not issued any stock options to the employees and accordingly 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (share based employee benefits) 
Regulation, 2014 was not applicable 

(c) The Company has neither got delisted Equity Shares nor bought back any security of 
the Company and accordingly 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009 and 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 1998 

were not applicable during the audit period. 

(d) Draft Scheme of Amalgamation of M/s. Dhara Petrochemicals Private Limited with 
Axel Polymers Limited was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at its 
meeting held on 21 st August, 2019. 

The Company has received a letter dtd. 19th June, 2020 from BSE informing 
observations of SEBI to be incorporated in the scheme. 

(e) The Company has Passed Special Resolutions at its 27th Annual General Meeting 
held on 27th September, 2019 approving : 

a. reappointment of Mr. Amitabh Gajendra Thakore (DIN : -00016715) as an 
Independent Director; 

b. reappointment of and remuneration to Mr. B. K. Bodhanwala (DIN: -
00421717) as a Whole Time Director; 

c. continuance of payment of remuneration to Mr. Gaurav Thanky 
(DIN :02565340) as a Managing Director; 

d. payment of remuneration to Mr. A.B. Bodhanwala (DIN :00421362) as a 
Director and CFO. 

e. alteration of Articles of Association by insertion of new Clause 'General 
Authority ; 

f. authority to the Board of Directors to borrow up to Rs. 50 Crores pursuant to 
Section 180(1 )(c) of the Companies Act, 2013; 

g. authority to the Board of Directors to create mortgage/charge on the assets of 
the Company pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 

(I) Mr. Amol Samant was appointed as an Additional Director (Independent) by the 
Board of Directors at its meeting held on 28th May 2019. He was further appointed 

13 L 



as Independent Director, by the Members of the Company at their 27'" Annual 
general Meeting Held on 27'" September 2019. 

(g) Mr. Jigardan Gadhvi, an Associate Member of Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India was appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance officer of the Company 
w.e.f. 4·h April 2019. 

(h) Out of 10,66,668 Equity Shares held by Promoters, 1,76,000 Equity Shares (16.50% 
of the total promoter shareholding) held by the persons (not related to the Directors) 
are not dematerialized. 

(i) Corporate Governance provisions as specified in LODR were not applicable in terms 
of Regulation 15(2) (a) of LODR as the Paid up equity Capital and Net Worth of the 
Company as at 31 " March 2019 did not exceed Rs. 10 crores and Rs. 25 crores 
respectively . 

Date: 30'" June, 2020 
Place: Vadodara 

For Devesh Pathak & Associates 
Practising Company Secretaries 

Devesh A. Pathak 
(Sole proprietor) 

Membership No. FCS 4559 
CoP No: 2306 

UDIN: F004559B000402176 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is enclosed as forming 
integral part of Report. 
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To, 
The Members, 
AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 
S No 309 , Vil-Mokshi, Sankarda-Savli Road 
Tal-Savli , Dist. Vadodara - 391780 

30th June, 2020 

Ref: Secretarial Audit Report dated 30th June, 2020 pursuant to Section 204(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. In view of COVID-19 advisories, we have not been able to verify the books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company in physical 
form at its Registered Office. Accordingly, we have only examined the electronically available 
soft copies of the minutes, forms and returns filed and other records provided by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31 st March , 2020. 

3. We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The 
verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the process and the practices we followed provided reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

4. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 
Accounts of the Company and have relied upon the Unaudited Financial Statement and 
Management Representation provided by the Company on the matter. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards, is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs· of the 
Company. 

For Devesh Pathak & Associates 
Practising Company Secretaries 

CS Devesh A. Pathak 
Proprietor 

Membership No. FCS 4559 
COP No.:2306 
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Annexure - 2 
Form AOC-2 

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's 

length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis 

There were no contracts or arrangements, or transactions entered into during the year ended 31st 

March 2020, which were not at arm's length basis. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and 
nature of relationship 

(b) Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transactions 
(c) Duration of the contracts / 
a rra ngemen ts/tra nsactions 
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including 
the value, if any: 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if 
any: 
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: 

Date: 30.06.2020 

Place: Mokshi 

Ohara Petrochemicals Pvt. ltd V R Industries 
Mr. Gaurav Thanky, MD of the Mr. Gaurav Thanky, MD of the 
Company is a Director of the Company is a partner of the 

related party. related party. 
Manufacturing Purchase & Sales Manufacturing Purchase & Sales 

Agreement Agreement 

3 years w.eJ. 14'" September 3 years w.e.f . 14'" September 
2017 2017 

The Terms are mainly to Buy Sell The Terms are mainly to Buy Sell 
or Manufacture Compounds of or Manufacture Compounds of 
Engineering Polymers in domestic Engineering Polymers in domestic 
as well as Export Market. as well as Export Market. 

Value of Contract during the year Value of Contract during the year 
ended 31" March 2020 Rs. 25.02 ended 31" March 2020 Rs. 0.00 
Cr Cr 

30.06.2020 30.06.2020 

357.64 Lacs NIL 
(Security Deposit) 

For and on behalf of the Board of 

Axel Polymers Limited 

Sd/-

B.K. Bodhanwala 

Chairman 

DIN: 00421717 
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Annexure - 3 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

The global health pandemic disrupted daily lives, livelihoods, businesses and economies world over, 
orchestrating an uncertain situation on account of endless lockdowns of cities and countries. This 
unprecedented event caused an operational and financial dent to businesses of all sizes and statures, 
challenging frameworks and continuity plans. To ensure safety of people and continuity of operations, 
businesses resorted to immediate viable measures like remote working and cost reductions to stay afloat 
and sustain 

With restrictions easing and commercial activity gradually picking up across the country, business 
sentiment is showing positive signs of recovery. But will it ever be like before? 

The pandemic has forced change: economic, societal and commercial. It is imperative to revaluate 
existing plans, remodel to sustain, factor in resilience to overcome future challenges of similar velocity, 
and most importantly adapt to the 'New Normal'. 

To help the organisation regain lost ground and build a stronger business foundation in the new norma l, 
your Directors have developed a Recovery model, elaborating a three-stage process, encouraging 
Rethinking original business and commercial assumptions, Repriorit ising obligations and Addressing 
issues to adapt and thrive. 

Industry structure and development 

Axel is a leading Manufacturer of Compounds Blends & Alloys of Engineering Polymers in India. Changing 
economic and business conditions, technological innovation and technology adoption are making the 
markets more competitive. The customer focus has shifted to cost saving and alternate solution. Axel 
always provides the optimum solution to its customer. 

These are challenging times across the world. Almost every business every individual is being impacted in 
these times and your Company is no exception to it. We must work harder and smarter, delight our 
customers now more than ever. The true spirit is founded on our enthUSiasm, on our constant wi ll to 
renew, on our willingness to assume responsibility and to ensure that we succeed. Your company backed 
by a list of Multinational and Indian Corporate Giants and remarkab le processing talents was able to face 
those challenges by bolstering talent and cost-effective plans across the company. 

Performance Analysis 

The performance analysis for the year; we achieved a Net Revenue of Rs. 2289.84/-lacs during the year. 
The Interest & Finance Costs for the year stood at Rs. 97.47/- lacs, which is nearly 4.26 % of the Net Sales 
& Depreciation at Rs. 36.34/- lacs. The RMC stood at Rs. 1652.83 Lacs; 72.18% as against this, the RMC in 
the previous year stood at 76.35% against Net Sales of previous year. Thus, during the current year the 
RMC decreased by approx 4% which is mainly attributable to the increase in manufacturing efficiency in 
terms of productivity . 

Opportunities & Threats 

Compared to the Global crisis, the effect on India would be less pronounced. The main factor is the 
domestic consumption in India is sufficiently large. Sustained domestic growth will bring improvement in 
all facets of life. 

World markets will continue to remain in the slump but do recognise the competitiveness of Indian 
products and services. This will in turn acce lerate t he pace of t he domestic ma rkets too in fu t ure. 

17 L 



The existing scale of our operations, future developments, low overheads, and qualities of products 
matching with International Standards are our inherent strengths. This in turn continues to give us 
unparalleled platform to be more competit ive. We are focused to deliver superior values to customers, 
ensuring International qualities for all the products and services. 

Segment wise I Product wise performance 

Class of Goods I Unit I Sales Qty (MT) I Value Rs (lacs) 

Compounds of Engineering Polymers I MT I 4924.717 I 2289.84 

Outlook 

The global health pandemic disrupted daily lives, livelihoods, businesses and economies world over, 
orchestrating an uncertain situation on account of endless lockdowns of cities and countries. This 
unprecedented event caused an operational and financial dent to businesses of all sizes and statures, 
challenging frameworks and continuity plans. To ensure safety of people and continuity of operations, 
businesses resorted to immediate viable measures like remote working and cost reductions to stay afloat 
and sustain 

With restrictions easing and commercial activity gradually picking up across the country, business 
sentiment is showing positive signs of recovery. But will it ever be like before? 

The pandemic has forced change: economic, societal and commercial. It is imperative to revaluate 
existing plans, remodel to sustain, factor in resilience to overcome future challenges of similar velocity, 
and most importantly adapt to the 'New Normal'. 

To help the organisation regain lost ground and build a stronger business foundation in the new normal, 
your Directors have developed a Recovery model, elaborating a three-stage process, encouraging 
Rethinking original business and commercial assumptions, Reprioritising obligations and Addressing 
issues to adapt and thrive. 

Consequent to the nationwide lockdown announced by the Government of India, the Company Plant and 
offices were shut down from March 23, 2020 onwards. The Company's management has done an 
assessment of the situations, including the liquidity positions and the recoverability and carrying value of 
all assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020 and concluded that there are no material adjustments 
required in the financial statements as of March 2020. 

However, the impact assessment of Covid-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainty associated 
with its nature and durations. The Company will continue to monitor any materials changes as the 
situation evolves. 

Looking to the overall scenario in the country as well as globally, the current year may not be as good as 
the last financial year. The situation has not normalized or even close to it. Businesses are still limping 
and the order position may not be comparable to even last year. However your Directors are making 
their earnest efforts to pull up the Sales revenue as fast as possible. 

Risk Management 

Polymer Industry has a certain specific set of risk characteristics, which needs to be carefu lly evaluated 
and mitigated. In order to effectively manage the same, the Company has evolved proactive Risk 
Management System, which is adhered to. The risk management covers the entire process from capital 
investment, competitors' activities, new entrants etc. Continual reforms and emphasis on technological 
developments shall reduce the exposure to risk. 

18 L 





CONFIRMATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT 

[Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V (Part D) of The Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 
The Members 
Axel Polymers Limited 

This is to confirm that the Board of Director has laid down a code of conduct for Directors and senior 
management of the Company. It is further confirmed that all Directors and senior management of the 
company have affirmed comp liance with the Code of Conduct of the Company as at 31.03.2020, as 
envisaged in Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V (Part D) of The Securities Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Place: Mokshi 
Date: 30.06.2020 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
Axel Polymers Limited 

Sd/-

B.K. Bodhanwala 
Chairman 

DIN: 00421717 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AXEL POLYMERS 

LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the Statement of 

Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity, and Statement of Cash Flows for the 

year then ended, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of the 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act 

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at 31st March, 2020, its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for 

the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 

specified under section 143( 1 0) of the companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under 

those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 

the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India together with the Ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

fmancial statements under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

thereunder, and we have fulftlled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements and the Codes of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion . 

Emphasis Of Matter 

We draw attention to Note No . 36(vii) of the accompanying standalone financial 

statements which states the impact of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-2019) on 

the operations of the company. Our opinion is not modified on this matter. 



Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 

on these matters. 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the management report and 

chairman's statement, but does not include the fmancial statements and our auditor's 

report thereon. 

Our opinion on the fmancial statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the fmancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 

Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these 

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance 

of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 



operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the [mancial statements that 

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

In prepanng the financial statements, the Board of Director is responsible for 

assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 

reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 

in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of the users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As a Part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omiSSIOn, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 



• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedure that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 

section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate Internal 

Financial Controls System in place and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls. 

• 

• 

• 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 

management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern 

basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 

material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 

conclude that a material uncertainly exists, we are required to draw attention in 

our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 

such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion . Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 

continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the fmancial 

statements including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit finding, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charge with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards . 



From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 

those matters that were most significance in the audit of the fmancial statements of 

the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 

in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine the matter should not 

be communicated in our report because th e adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"). issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section(ll) of section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified 

in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 

audit . 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept 

by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 

are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 

7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 

31 st March 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 



directors is disqualified as on 31 s< March 2020 from bein g appointed as a 

director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal fmancial controls over fmancial 

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of su ch controls, 

refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 8 n
• 

g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 

31,2020 has been paid/ provided by the Company to its Directors in 

accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the 

Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor 's Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us: 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact 

its fmancial position in its financial statements. 

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 30.06.2020 

For Mukund & Rohit 
Chartered Accountants 
Registration No. 113375W 

Rohit Kothari 
Partner 
Membership No. 038908 
UDIN:20038908AAAAAD4758 



Annexure A to the Auditors' Report 

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of Axel Polyme rs 

Limited for the year ended March 31, 2020, we report that: 

I. 

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 

particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 

Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the 

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by 

the management at reasonable intervals, and no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the title 
deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the 
company. 

II. The Inventory have been physically verified by the management at 

reasonable intervals. Discrepancies noticed were not material and the 

same have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts. 

III. As informed to us, the Company has not granted loans, secured or 

unsecured to Companies, firms, LLP or other parties covered in register 

maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. Hence, the 

questions of reporting whether the receipt of the principal amount and 

interest are regular; and, whether reasonable steps for the recovery of 

overdues of such loan are taken does not arise. 

IV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 

to us, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, 

provIsIOns of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have 

been complied with. 

V. Based on the our scrutiny of Company's record and according to the 

information and explanation provided by the management, in our 

opinion, the Company has not accepted any loans or deposits, which 



are "Deposits" within the meaning of Rule 2(b) of the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposit's) Rules, 2014 . 

VI. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Central 

Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under 

sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

VII. 

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed 

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income -Tax, Sales -

Tax, Service tax, duty of excise, value added tax, Goods & Service 

Tax or cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate 

authorities and no statutory dues were outstanding, as at 31st 

March, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date 

they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there 

are no dues of Income Tax or Sales Tax or Service Tax or duty of 

excise or value added tax, Goods & Service Tax or cess, which 

have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

VIII. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and 

explanations given by the management, the Company has not defaulted 

in repayment of dues to financial institutions or bank or debenture 

holders. 

IX. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and 

explanations given by the management, Company has not raised money 

by initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 

instruments) and there are no term loans during the period covered by 

our audit report. 

X. Based on the audit procedure performed for the purpose of reporting 

the true and fair view of the Ind AS financial statements and as per the 

information and explanations given by the management, we report that 

no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the 

year. 



XI. Based on the our scrutiny of Company's record and according to the 

information and explanation provided by the management, in our 

opinion, the company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration 

in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions , 
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act. 

XII. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the 

provisions of clause 3(xii) of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 

are not applicable. 

XIII. All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 

177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been 

disclosed in the lnd AS Financial Statements, as required by the 

applicable accounting standards at Note 36 (ii) of financial statements. 

XIV. Based on our examination of records and information provided to us by 

management, we report that the Company has not made any 

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 

convertible debentures during the year under review. 

XV. Based on our examination of records and information provided to us by 

management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 

transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 

XVI. The company is not required to be registered under section 4S-IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, the provisions of clause 

3(xvi) of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable. 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 30.06.2020 

For Mukund & Rohit 
Chartered Accountants 
Registration No. 113375W 

Rohit Kothari 
Partner 
Membership No. 038908 
UDIN:20038908AAAAAD4758 



Annexure - B to the Auditors' Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over fmancial reporting of Axel 

Polymers Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our 

audit of the Ind AS fmancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 

date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 

internal fmancial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

('ICAIl These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 

of adequate internal fmancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 

errors , the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 

2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opmlOn on the Company's internal financial 

controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued 

by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 



Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 

controls over fmancial reporting was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 

adequacy of the internal fmancial controls system over fmancial reporting and their 

operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 

the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 

system over fmancial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal fmancial control over financial reporting is a process 

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and the preparation of fmancial statements for external purposes · in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 

fmancial control over fmancial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that 

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

permit preparation of Ind AS fmancial statements in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 

are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 

directors of the company; and 

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 



AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020 

Note .... t 
Particulars 

No 31st March 2020 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 3,65,83,195 
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4 
(h) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 4 44,51,639 
(ii) Loans 5 -
(iii) Other Financial Assets 6 18,46,124 

(c) Advance Income Tax Assets (Net) 7 14,59,799 
(d) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 8 29,08,498 
(e) Other non -current assets 9 2955000 

502 04 254 

Current a .sets 
(a) Inventories 10 8,69,70 ,080 
(bl Financial Asscts 

(i) Trade RC(;eivables 11 2,10,03,433 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 2,01,278 
(iii) Loans 13 7,501 
(iv) Other Financial Assets I. 35,33,061 

(c) Advance Income Tax Assets (Net) 15 7,38,987 
(d) Other current assets 16 408,454 

11 2862794 

Total 16,30,67,048 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 

Equity Share Capital 17 4,30,00,000 
Other Equity 18 123 1 10192 

Total Equity 1 9889808 
Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 19 45,58,607 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 20 3,57,64,000 

(bl Provisions 21 1704215 
Total A 42026822 

Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 22 6,99,83,980 
(i i) Trade payables 23 2,94,49,859 

(iii) Other Financial liabilities 2. 4,16,226 
(b) Other current liabilities 25 7,94,572 
(c) Provisions 26 505781 

Total B 10 11 50 418 

Total Liabilities (A+B) 143177240 

Total Equity and Liabilities 16,30,67,048 

The accompanyint notes 1 to 36 are an intelUal part of our financial statements 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For Mukund & Rohit 
Chartered Accountants 
Retisuation No. 113375W 

Sd/-
Rohlt Kothari 
Partner 
Membership No: 038908 
UDIN: 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 30.06.2020 

Sd/-
B.K. Bodhanwala 
Chlarman 

Sd/­
A.B.Bodhanwala 
Director & CFO 

.... t 
31st March 2019 

3,86,09,495 

56,07,393 

18,46,124 
6,75,416 

26,56,967 
2955000 

52350394 

7,23,72,335 

1,75,56,870 
1,66,264 
},16,716 

13,82,270 
7,84,383 
7 16076 

93094914 

14,54,45,309 

4,30,00,000 
123682748 
19317252 

56,17,013 
3,57,64,000 

699291 
42080304 

6,99,27,969 
99,95,954 
10,36,921 
19,41,162 
11,45748 

84047753 

126128057 

14,54,45,309 

For & on behalf of the Board 
Axel Polymers Limited 

Sd /-
Gaurav Thanky 

Managing Director 

Sd/­
Jigardan Gadhvi 

Company Secretary 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 30.06.2020 



AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 

Stateme nt of Profit and Lou for the year e nded 31st March, 2020 

Note AoAt AoAt 
Particulars 

No. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

I Rel/enue from operations 27 22,89,84,409 24,37,39,905 
II Other Income 28 2 10 638 189017 
!II Total Income (I+U) 2291,95047 243928922 

IV EXPENSES 

Cost of materials consumed 29 16,52,83,682 18,60,93,393 

Excise duty on Sllie of goods 30 

Purchase of Stock in trade 32 

Changes in inl/entory of finished goods & work-in -progress 30 72,37,795 (53,62,812) 

Employee Benefits Expense 31 1,98,76,560 1,84,74,470 

Finance Costs 32 97,47,996 91,39,501 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3 36,33,930 33,33,802 

Other Expenses 33 22627180 27901782 
Total Expensea (IV) 228407 143 23958013S 

V Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax (III -IV) 7 ,87,904 43,48,787 
VI Exccptionalltems 

vn Profit Be fore Tax (V-VI) 787904 43 48 787 

VIU Tax Expenae: 

(alCurrent Tax 1,03,616 8,80,519 

(b)Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement (1,03,616) (12,12,082) 

(C)Dcferred Tax (1,47,915) 

IX Pro fit for the Year (VII-VDI) 935819 4680350 

X Othe r Comprehenaive Income (OCII 

(AI Itellls that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 
Ii) Re-mensurement of the Defined Benefit Plans 3,63,263 (4,330) 

(iiJDefe rred Tax Impact on abol/e Ind As adjustment 

Total of Other Comprehensive Incom e (OCI) (X) 363263 14330 

XI Total Comprehensive Income ror the Year (IX+X) 572556 4684680 

XU Eamines Per Equity Sha re: 

Basic (in Rs.) 35 0.22 1.09 
Diluted (in Rs.) 0.22 1.09 

The accompanyine notea 1 to 36 are an inte&m1 part or our financial atatements 

Aa p e r our Re po rt or even date attached 

For Mukund 8. Rohit 

Chartered Accountanta 

Repatratlon No. 113375W 

Bd /­

RobU Kothari 

Partner 

Membership No: 038908 

UDIN: 

Place : Vadodara 

Date, 30.06.~020 

Bdl· 
B.K . Bodhanwala 

Cbiannan 

Sd /­

A.B.Bodhanwala 

DirectOJ" 8. CFO 

For 8. on behalf or the Board 

Axel Polymers Limited 

Bdl· 
Gaurav Thanky 

Manacine Director 

Bd/. 
Jleardan Gadhvi 

Company Secretary 

Place: Vadodera 
DIlt.:,: 30.06.2020 



AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 

C .. h Flow State m ent A. At 31.03.2020 

Am tn 0= 

I "" At ""At Partlculu. 
31st March, 2020 31st Much, 2019 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit before tax and extra ordinary items 7 ,87,904 43,48,787 
(Including Prior period adjustments) 
Adju.tment. For: 
Depreciation 36,33,930 33,33,802 
{Gain)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 

Interest expense 97,47,996 91,39,501 
Interest income (2,10,638) (1,89,017) 
Oper.ting Profit be ro re working capital chana:" 1,39,59,193 1,66,33,072 
Acljustment for (incrcue)/decrea.e in OperatiD, asscts 
Inventories (1,45,97,745) (44,98,492) 
Trade Receivables (34,46,563) 95,56,961 
Non current trade receivables 11,55,754 31,34,158 
Loans current as well as non current 1,09,216 14,21,159 
Other Financial Asset-non current 
Advance Income Tax Asset-non current (7,84,383) 64,260 
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 
Other Financial Asset -current (21,50,791) 10,05,014 
Advance InCOllle Tax Assets (NelJ-current 45,397 13,42,539) 
Other current Asset 3,01,622 2, 10,844 
Other non current Asset 

Provisions Current as well as non current 1,694 3,99,801 
Trade Payables-currcnt 1,94,53,905 (16,76,938) 
Other Financial Liability - current (6,20 ,695) 2,54,212 
Other Financial Liability - non current (1,21,11,000) 
Other cUlTent Liabilities (11,46,590J 7,15,502 
Cash Gcnerated From Operations 1,22,86,014 1,47,66,013 
Direct Tax Pai<! (1,03,616) (8,80,519) 
Net C .. h From Operatina: Activities IAI 1,21,82,398 1,38,85,494 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Fixed Assets (16,Q1,629J (59,62,936) 
Sale of Assets (Including Profi!/loss) 
Interest Income 2,10,637 1,89,017 
Change in Bank Margin Money/FD Originally matured mOre than 3 months 
Net Cash From lovesting Activities IBI 113,96,992) 157,73,919) 

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from long term borrowings 56,011 8,68,562 
Proceeds from short term borrowings (10,58,407) 1,51,534 
Finance Cost (97,47,996) (91,39,501) 
Net Ca.h From FiDanciD, Activities 101 11 ,07,50,392) 181 ,19,405) 

Net increue/decre .. e iD Cash and equivalcnts IA)+IB)+IC) IDI 35,014 17,829) 
Opening balance of Cash and cash equivalents lEI 1,66,264 1,74,092 
ClosiDa: balaoce of Cash a nd Cash equ ivalants DJ +IE) 2,01,278 1,66,264 

Cash and cash Equivalents include 

Cash in hand 1,56,441 -1,41 ,263 
Balance with Scheduled_Bank 

- In Current Account 44,837 25,001 
- In Deposit Account 

(held as Margin Money having original maturity of 
less than 12 months) 

2,01,278 1,66,264 
Note .-

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'indirect Method' set out in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) _ 7 · Statem ent of cash Flows· 

2 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary. 

3 Figures for provision derived afler adjustment for Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). 

The accompanyiol Dotes 1 to 36 ue a n iDtea;ral put or ollr nnaocialstatements 

For Mukund & Rohlt 

Chartered Accountant. 

Rea:iattatioo No. 113375W 

so/­
Rohit Kothari 

Partoer 

Membership No; 038908 

UDIN: 

Place: Vadod.,a 

Date: 30.06.2020 

so/-
B.K. Bodhanwala 

Chiarman 

Sd/­
A.B.Bodbanwaia 

Director & CFO 

For & on behalf or the Board 

Axel Polymers Limited 

so/-
Gaurav Thanky 

Manalin, Director 

so/­
Jia:udan Gadhvl 

Company Secrctary 

Place: Vadod.,a 

Date: 30.06.2020 



AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on 31st March, 2020 

Amount!') 

Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 

Balance as on 1st April, 2018 4,30,00,000 

Changes during the year -
Balance as on 31st March,2019 4,30,00,000 

Changes dunng the year -
Balance as on 31st March,2020 4,30,00,000 

Other Equity 

Particulars 
Reserves and Surplus 

Total 
Retained Earnings OCI 

Balance as at ht April,2017 (as previously reported) (3,07,73,856) (1,61,2121 (3,09,35,068) 
Profit for the Year 23,19, 164 - 23,19,1 64 

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (net of Tax) 2,4 8,4 76 2,48,476 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 23,19,164 2,48,476 25,67,640 

Balance as at 31st March, 2018 (2,84,54,692) 87,264 (2,83,67,428) 

Profit for the Year 46,80,350 46,80,350 

Other Comprehensive Income for the Yea r (net of Tax) 4,330 4,330 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 46,80,350 4,330 46,84,680 

Balance as at 31st March, 2019 (2,37,74,342) 91 ,594 (2,36,82,748) 

Profit for the Year 9,35,819 9 ,35 ,819 

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (net of Tax) (3,63,2631 (3,6 3,26 31 
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 9,35,819 (3.63,263) 5,72,556 

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 (2,28,38,523) (2,71.669) (2,31,10,192) 



AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 3 ;.Property. Pant a.nd Equipment _u 
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK 

Particulan; Value at the Addition durin, Deduction Value at the Addition durin, Deduction WDV .. on WDV .. on 
bepnnlnC the year durin, the year 

Value at the end 
""etnniD& the year durin, the year 

Value at the end 
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 

Free Hold Land 29,87,286 - 29,87,286 29,87,286 29,87,286 

Building 39,21,321 - 39,21,321 13,3 1,063 60,843 13,91,906 25,29,415 25,90,258 

Factory Building 2,01,78,958 3,70,176 2,05,49,134 89,29,432 6,28,178 95,57,610 1,09,91,524 1,12,49,526 

Plant 8. Machinery 7,00,71,345 11,53,743 7,12,25,088 5,63,77,916 17,30,424 5,81,08,340 1,31,16,748 1,36,93,429 

Electrical Installations 36,11,055 36,11,055 26,05,233 1,13,927 27,19,160 8,91,895 10,05,822 

Laboratory Equipments 57,63,085 57,63,085 26,18,750 4,58,696 30,77,446 26,85,639 31,44,335 

Fumiture & Fixtures 22,14,105 - 22,14,105 15,58,078 88,284 16,46,362 5,67,743 6,56,027 

Data Processing Machines 16,22,942 16,22,942 15,76,420 23,216 15,99,636 23,306 46,522 

Office Equipments 17,41,533 83,7 10 18,25,243 12,77, 184 1,20,455 13,97,639 4,27,604 4,64 ,349 

Vehicles 32,19,924 32,19,924 4,47,983 4,09,906 8,57,889 23,62,035 27,71,94\ 

Grand Totall.u on 31.03.2020) 11,53,31,554 16,07,629 11,69,39,183 7,67,22,059 36,33,929 8,03,55,988 3,65,83,195 3,86,09,495 
Previou. Year Fleure.( .. on 31.03.2019) 10,93,68,618 59,62,_9_36 

-- --- --
11,~3,31,554 7,33,88,256 33,33!802 7,67,22,058 3,86,09,495 3,59,80,362 



AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

4 N on curre n t FI Danc ialAs t T d R s. 0 <a. ece va bl .s 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

Trade receivable 44,51,639 56,07,393 
Less;~ Provision For Bad and doubtful debts 0 0 

Total 4451639 5607393 

5 N on curren t FI 0 i lAs t L nanc a ,. oans 

Particulars 
For the year ended For tbe year ended 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

Premal Vashi 0 

Total 0 

6 

Particulars 

7 Advance Income Tax Assets INet) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

TDS Receivable 14 59 799 675416 
Total 1459799 675416 

8 Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

Deferred Tax Asset 9,30,126 7,82,211 
MAT credit entitlement 1978372 1874756 

Total 2908498 2656967 

90th N .. on curren t As t s • 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

Ca ital advance 2955000 2955000 
Total 2955000 2955000 

10 Inventories 

Pa rticulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

(At lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value) 
Raw Material 6,97,24,753 5,06,27,078 
Work in Process 27,86,925 27,71,591 
Finished Goods 86,94,876 1,59,48,005 
Consumables 5763526 3025661 

Total 86970080 72372335 
I 

11 eu re t Fi , n nanc a s, 0 ra e rece va ilAstTd bl . s 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

Trade receivable 2,10,03,433 1,75,56,870 
(Amount includes receivables from related party amounting to 
RsA,409 ,215j · in current year and Rs.IO,868,066j· in Previous year.) 
Refer to note no. 36 (ii) under notes on accountsl 

Total 21003433 17556870 

12 C urren t FI 0 ilA tCh d nanc a sse . as an ca, h eau va ent. 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

Cash in Hand 1,56,441 1,41,263 
Balances with banks 44 837 25001 

Total 201278 166264 



I 

13 I I Current · F nane a "-aet ·Loan. 

Particular. 

Loans To Em 10 ees 

14 C uuen t FI i lAs tOth FI nane a a. - .. DaDC !al As t ae 0 

Particulars 

Interest Receivable 
Fixed De osits wilh Bank 

15 Advance Income Tax Asaet. 'Net' 

I 
I!ds Receivable 2018-19 
Tds Receivable 2019-20 

Particulan 

16 Othe C , urren t As t o. 

Particular. 

Pre paid Expenses 
Trust - Ggca Axel Polymers Ltd. 
Advances to Supoliers 

18 Other E uit 

Particulars 

Retained Earnings 
Other Comorehensive Income 

COnl:putation of Other Equitv 

Particulars 

Total Balance as at 31st March 2018 
Profit for the Year 
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (net of Tax) 
Total Comprehensive Income ror the Year 
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 
Balance ofOCI as at 31st March 2019 
Total Balance as at 31st March 2019 
Profit for the Year 
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (net of Tax) 
Total Comprehenaive Income for the Year 
Balance as at 31 st March, 2020 
Balance orOCI as at 31st March 2020 
Total Balance aa at 31st March 2020 

19 Non-Current LiabilitIes-Finaneial Liabilitiea - borrowing 

Particulara 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Unsecured loans Irom Directors (Reier to note no. 30 (il) under notes on 
accounts) 

Total 

20 Non-Current Liabilitlea-Financial LiabilitIes- Other Financial Liabllit\ 

Particulars 

Depoait 
Ohara Petrochemicals Pvt Ltd (Deposit) 
V R Industries Deposit 

Total 

21 N C on- urren t Li blliti P a ea- I I I'ova on 

Particulars 

Provision for gratuity 
Provision for Income Ta'C 

Total 

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

7501 
7501 

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

136911 
3396 150 
3533061 

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

738987 
738987 

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

2.09.098 
10,000 

189356 
408454 

(2'~r38,5231 
271669 

231 10 192 

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

4558607 
4558607 

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

3,57.64,000 
-

35764000 

For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

1080136 
624079 

1704215 

For the year ended. 
31st March 2019 

I 16716 
1 16716 

For the year ended 
31st March 2019 

103770 
1278500 

1382270 

For the year ended l 
31st March 2019 

7,84,~83 I 

784383 

For the year ended 
31st March 2019 

2,47,490 
10,000 I 

458586 
716076 

For the year ended 
31st March 2019 

(2.37,74.342) 
91594 

23682748 

Total 

28367428 
46,80,350 

4,330 
46,84,680 

12,37,74,342) 
91594 

23682748 
9,35.819 

(3,63,263) 
5,72,556 

(2,28,38,523) 
1271669 

231 10 192 

For the ycar cnded 
31st March 2019 

5617013 
5617013 

For the year ended 
31st March 2019 

3,57,64,000 
-

35764000 

For the year ended 
31st March 2019 

699291 

699291 



AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note For the y_r ended For the year ended For the year ended .... 
N • • 

Particular. 
31st March, 2020 31st March , 2019 3ht March, 2017 01.04.2016 

17 Share Capital No. of Shares A.mountn No. or Shares A.mo ... .ot(') No. or Shares AmOUDtn No. or Shares Amount!') 

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL: J 5,00,00,000 15,00,00.000 5,00,00,000.00 5,00,00,000.00 

1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of '10/- ~ach 

(P. Y.50,OO,OOO Equity Shares of '10/- each) 

ISSUED ,SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL: 

43,00,000 EquityShares of '10 ~ach fully paid up 4,30,00,000 4 ,30,00,000 4,30,00,000.00 4,30,00,000.00 

(P.Y. 43,00,000 Equity Shares of 'IO/-~ach) 

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at th~ 

beginning and at the end of the I"eQQrting ~od' 

Equity Shares with voting rights No.of Shares Amount Rs. No.of Shares Amount Rs. No.of Shares Amount Rs. No.ol Shares Amount Rs. 

Opening Balan~ 43,00,000 4,30,00,000 43,00,000 4,30,00,000 43,00,000 4,30,00,000 43,00,000 4,30,00,000 

Add:Fresh Issue -
Closing Balance 43,00,000 4,30,00,000 43,00,000 4,30,00,000 43,00,000 4,30,00,000 43,00,000 4,30,00,000 

ShareholdeTS b o1dLai exceedLDl5% shares No.of Shares " No.of Shares % No,ofShues % No.of Share. % 

Gaurav Thanky 2,23,867 5.21 2,23,867 5.21 2,23,867 5.21 1,99,000 4.63 



AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 
22 Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities- Borrowintl 

Particulars 
For tbe year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

BOB CC A/ C 53 6,99,83,980 6,99,27,969 
Loans To Employ~esUlJikhii S. Shah' 

ToW 69983980 69927969 
AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 

23 b 1 Current Lia I Ities-FInanc ial bUitl LI. e.-Tra d bl e Pant es 

Particula rs 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

Trade Payable For Goods and Services 2,79, 13,502 87 ,69,632 
Trade Payable For Expenses IS 36 357 1226322 

Total 29449859 9995954 

24 Current Liabilities Financial Liabilities Other Financla1liabllities -
Particulars 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

Provision - Audit Fees -
Provision - Expenses 393040 979670 

Total 416226 1036921 

2 S Current Liabilities Other Current Liabllltie. -
Particular. 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st Mareh 2019 3lat March 2019 

Statuto Liabilities 794572 1941 162 
Total 794572 1941 162 

26 Current LlabUitie. - Provision(.1 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended I 
3lat March 2020 3lat March 2019 

Provision - Current Tax 1,03,616 8,28,167 1 
Provision-Gratuity 402 165 3 17581 

Total 505781 11 45 748 I 



AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2 7 Revenue from Operations 
Particulars 2019·20 2018· 19 

Sale of Products 19,30,67,670 20,53,45,721 
Sale of SeTVlces 3,59,16,739 3,83,94,184 
riDS CY Rs. 7 38 987/ · Py Rs. 767905/·) 

Total 228984409 243739905 

28 Other Income 
Particula rs 2019· 20 2018· 19 

Interest Income 2,23,804 1,81,140 
(TOS CY Rs 16,478, Py Rs.32,78 1/·) 
Profit from sale of Fixed assets . . 

Interest On Income Tax Refund 4,389 
Foreign Exchange gain · 15,678 
Miscellous Income 2512 3489 

Total 210638 189017 

29 Cos t of Materials Consumed 
Particulars 2019-20 2018· 19 

Raw Mate rial Consumed 
Opening Stock 5,06,27,078 5,06,32,159 
Purchases 18,43,81.357 18,60,88,312 
Total 23,50,08,435 23,67,20,471 
Less : Closin~ Stock 69724753 506 27 078 
Raw Material Consumed 165283682 1860 93 393 

30 Cha nges in inventory of finished goods & work-In-process 
Particulars 2019·20 2018· 19 

Closing Stock of : 
Finished Goods of Compounds of Engg.Polymers 86,94,876 1,59,48,005 
Work in Process 2786925 2771591 

Total 1 1481 801 18719596 

Opening Stock of : 
Finished Goods of Compounds of Engg.Polymers 1,59,48,005 1,07,58,484 
Work in Process 2771591 2598300 

Total 1 87 19596 13356784 

Increase) /Decrease in Stock (A·B) 7237795 153,62812 
Stock and 0 enin stock of finished oods 7237795 5362812 

31 Emnlovees b ene fl t. 
Particulars 2019· 20 2018· 19 

Salary, Wages, Allowances & other benefits 
(Amount indudes Director's remuneration and perquisite payable for 

1,86,86,313 1,76,41.747 

Current year Rs.45.56.573 /· and for previous year Rs.36,38,994/-) 
(Refer to note no . 37 (ii) under notes on accounts) 
Gratuity 4,02,165 3, 17,58 1 
ES)C 2,34,447 
Con(ibmion to Providend fund and other funds 5,10,885 4,29.440 
Staff Welfare Expenses 42750 85702 

Total 19876560 18474470 

32 Financial Cost 
Particulars 2019·20 2018· 19 

Interest to Bank 76,55,122 78,17,095 
Interest to Others 1,00,885 4, 19,022 
(Amount includes Interest Payable to Director for Current year Rs. Nil in 
P.Y. Rs.3,60,OOO/·) (Refer to note no. 36 (ii) under notes on accounts) 
Net (gain)/Ioss on Forex 
Bank charges 199 1 989 903384 

Total 9747995.68 9139501 

33~~~~--~~~-----------r--2Ot~---r--2Ot~--1 
I Msnur'<ctu<iing Expenses 

& Maintainance to Plant & Machinery 
Expense 

I ~;~~~:~:~:;~",\:o:~:tbers Expenses & Freight Charges 
of Store & Spares 

of fIXed Asset 

For Aud it Fees 
debts/ Provision for Bad Debts" 

& Ta."<es 
I R"naj, . & Mainten ance to Others 

1,02,68,30 1 
10,47.481 

1,95,969 

34 ,05,4 11 
10,04 1 

4 ,41,150 

3,50,000 

1,18, 17,986 
9,57,087 
1,68,305 

31,40,588 
45,35,289 

2,93,970 

3,50,000 

2,37,9 14 



AXEL POLYMERS LIMITED 

3. FiDaDeW iD.abumcDb Dt.eloaurc 

A Capital Mallalcmcllt 
The Company's objective when managing capital is to: 

1. Safeguard its ability to continue as gOing concern so that the Company is able to provide maximum return to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and 

2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

GnrlDI Rdlo 
The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period is as follows. 

Aa at ... .. ... .. 
Partlculara 

31 Marcb. 2020 31 Mareb. 2019 31 M .. , •• 2010 
D<bt 4558607 5617013 5465479 
Total EQuity 1,98,89,808 1.93.17,252 1,46,32,572 
Debt to EQuity Ratio 0.23 0.29 0.37 

I. Debt is defined as all Long Tenn Debt outstanding + Current Maturity outstanding in lieu of Long Term Debt. 

2. Equity is defined as Equity Share Capital + Other Equity 

B Cateloriea of J'iIlallc:WlDatruPleOU 

Particular. I Aa at ..... ..... 
31 Ma b 2020 3. II" •. 20 •• 31 Marcb. 2018 

Financial A ..... u 
Meuured d amortbed eoat 
fa) Trade and other receivables '2,54,55,072 2,3 1,64,263 3,58,55,382 
!bl Cash and cash equivalents 2,01,278 1,66,264 24,74,693 
!el Other Brulk balance~ 
(d) Loans 7.501 1.16,716 15,37,875 
(e) Other Financial Assets 53,79,185 32,28.394 19,32,808 

Financial Liabilitl •• 
Meaaurcd at aPlort1aed coat 
(a) Borrowings 7,45,42,587 7,55,44,98'2 7,45,24,886 
(b) Trade Payables 2,94,49,859 99,95,954 1,16,72,892 
i~i Other FinRncial Liabilities 35787 186 35821251 4 7923253 

C FiIlaDelal Rlak mallaiemeDt obJeetivea 

The Company's busine~ses are subject to !leVeral risks and uncertainties including financial risks. The Company's documented risk management polices act as an 
crfe1:tive tool in mitigating the various financial risks to which the business is exposed to in the course or their daily operations. The risk management policies cover 
areas such 8S liquidIty risk, commodity price risk, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, counterparty and concentration or credit risk and capital management. Risks 
are identified through a formal risk management programme with active involvement of senior management personnel and business managers. The Company has in 
place risk management processes in line with the Company's policy. Each significant risk has adesignated 'owner' within the Company at an appropriate senior level. 
The potential financial impact of the risk and its likelihood ora negative outcome are regularly updated. 

The risk management process is coordinated by the Manasement Assurance function and Is regularly reviewed by the Company's Audit Committee. The Audit 
Committee is aided by the CFO Committee and the Risk Management Committee, which meets regularly to review risks as well as the progress against the planned 
actions Key business decisions are discussed at the periodic meetings of the CFO Committee and the Executive Committee. The overall internal control environment 
and risk management programme including financial risk management is reviewed by the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board. 

L.lqulan:y KUK manacement 

l.iquldity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty In meeting the obligations associated with its financia l liabilities that arc required 10 be settled by 
delivering cash or another linancial assel. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents Including bank deposits and 
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet the obligations when due. The management prepares annual budgets for 
detailed discussion and analysis or the nature and quality of the assumption, parameters etc. 

The following tables detai l the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilit ies ..... ith agreed repayment periods. The information 
included in the tables have been drnwn up based on the undiscounted cBsh flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be 
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. The contractual maturi ty is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be 
required to pay. 

Partieulara Le •• thUl 1 year Between 1 and 5 More th_ 5 year. ToW m. 
AtI at 31st March, :1020 
NOll ' CUITeDt FiDanciai LlahWtlea 

Borrowings 45,58,607 45,:58,607 
Other Financial Liabilities 35764000 35764000 

40322607 40322607 
Current Fi.Daoelal LlabWtiea 

Borrowings 6 ,99,83,980 6,99,83,980 
Trade Payables 2,94,49,859 2,94,49,859 
Other Financial LiabIlities 4 16226 . 416226 

9985006:5 998:50065 
Total Floanclal LlabUitiea 99850065 40322607 • O. 672 

AtI at 3ht Mareb, 2019 
NoD. . Curreot Finanela) LlabWtlea 

Borrowings 56, 17,013 56,17,013 
Other Financial Liabilities 35764000 35764000 

4 1381 013 4 13 81 013 
Curreot Fillanela1 LlabUitie. 

Borrowings 6,99,27,969 6,99,27,969 
Trade Payables 99,95,954 99,95,954 
Other Financial Liabilities 1036921 1036921 

809 60 843 80960843 
Total FloaDelal LlabUJUe. 809 60 843 • 3. 1 23. .5 

30 EarlliD,. per Equity ahare 

Partieula,. Aa at A.at 
3lat Mueb, 2020 31st Mareb, 2019 

Profit After Tax for the year attributable to 
9,35,8 19 46,80,350 CQuitv shareholders 

Wei,llhted aven:tJ/.e number of Eouitv shares 4300000 4300000 
Ba.ie aod Diluted earllill a r e .1 .bare. R • . 0 .22 1.09 



Axel Polymers Limited 

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended on 31st March, 2020 

NOTE:- 1 Corporate Information 

Axel Polymer Limited is a company incorporated under the laws of the Republic of India with 

its registered office at 309, Mokshi, Sankarda - Savli Road, Savli, Vadodara-391780 having 

business of manufacturing Compounds, Blends and Alloys of Engineering, Specialty and 

Commodity Polymers since 1995. 

Note:-2 

2(A) Significant Accounting Policies 

A.I Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time. 

A.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements 

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis 
of accounting except following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value 
amount: 

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities, and 
ii) Defined benefit plans - plan assets 

A.3 Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statement requires management of the company to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and reported. 

A.4 Inventories 

Inventories are " Valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Valuation is ascertained on 
following basis. 
a. Raw materials, stores, spares and consumables on FIFO basis . 
b. Semi-finished goods and finished goods, cost includes direct material and labour and 

proportion of manufacturing overheads on FIFO basis. Cost of finished goods includes 
excise duty. 

A.S Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

The cash flow statements is prepared by the "Indirect Method" set out in Accounting Standard 3 
on "Cash Flow Statement" and presents the cash flow by Operating, Investing & Financing 
activities of the company. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash at bank 
and in hand and short term Investment with the Original Maturity of 3 months or less. 



Axel Polymers Limited 

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended on 31st March, 2020 

A.6 Property, Plant an d Equipments 

Property, Plant and Equipments are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment, if any. It includes the direct costs attributable to bringing the assets to its working 
condition for its intended use. 

Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of the assets that are not yet ready for their 
intended use at the reporting date. 

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are 
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. 

The depreciation during the year has been provided on straight line basis as per Schedule II of 
the Companies act 2013 since the acquisition of respective fIxed assets . The depreciation on 
fIxed assets is provided on the straight line method considering the useful life and residual 
value of respective fixed asset. 

The useful life of assets as adopted by the company as per new schedule II of the Companies act 
is listed as under: 

Particulars Useful Life 
Freehold Land 20 
Building (Factory) 30 
Building (Residential) 60 
Plant and Machinery 8 
Plant and Machinery (Twin Screw Extruder) 20' 
Electrical Installations 10 
Laboratory Equipment 10 
Computers, Server & Networking Device 3 
Furniture 10 
OffIce equipment 5 
Vehicles - Four Wheeler 8 

'Based on an independent technical evaluation carried out by external valuer, the management 
believes that the useful life of Plant and machinery estimated best represents the period over 
which the management expects to use these assets. However the usefu l lives for these assets is 
different from that prescribed in schedule II of the Act . 

A.7 Revenue recognition: 

a) Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when signifIcant risks and rewards of ownersh ip 
have been passed to the buyer and when the effective control of the seller as the owner is 
lost. Revenues are recorded at invoice value, net of goods & service tax . 

b) Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis. 
c) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. 
d) Job work income is recognised on completion of job. 

A.S Foreign currency transactions 

Exchange differences 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
the transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are tran slated at year end 
exchange rates. 



Axel Polymers Limited 

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended on 31st March, 2020 

a) Exchange differences arising on settlement of transactions and translation of monetary 
items other than those covered by (b) below are recognized as income or expense in the 
year in which they arise . Exchange differences considered as borrowing cost are 
capitalized to the extent these relate to the acquisition / construction of qualifying assets 
and the balance amount is recognized in the Profit and Loss Statement. 

b) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
recorded using the exchange rates at the date of transaction. The gain or loss arising on 
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the 
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item. (i.e. translation 
difference on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit 
and Loss are also recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively). 

A.9 Employee Benefits 

a) The Company's contribution in respect of provident fund is charged to Profit and Loss 
Account each year. 

b) The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service 
with the Company at the time of resignation. The gratuity is paid @ 15 days salary for 
every completed year of service as per the payment of Gratuity Act 1972. 

The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) 
under LIC's Group Gratuity policy. The liability in respect of gratuity is calculated using 
the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the benefit is 
expected to be derived from employees' services. 

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect post-employment are charged to the 
Other Comprehensive Income. 

A.I0 Borrowing Costs: 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset should be capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. The a mount of borrowing 
costs eligible for capitalisation should be determined in accordance with this Standard. Other 
borrowing costs should be recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred 

To the extent that funds are borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying 
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation on that asset should be 
determined as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that Borrowing during the period less 
any income on the temporary investment of those borrowings. 

A.ll Segment disclosures: 

The company operates in a single business segment, i.e. of manufacturing of compounds, 
blends & a lloys of Engineering Polymers; and also no geographical segments as company 
operates only in India. Accordingly, no separate disclosures required by AS-17 for primary 
business segment and geographical segment. 

A.12 Lease:-

Finance Leases 
Assets acquired under lease where the company has substantially all the risk and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance lease. Such leases are capitalised at the inception of lease 
at lower of the fair value and present value of minimum lease payments. Each lease rental paid 
is allocated between the liability and the interest cost, so as to obtain a constant periodic rate 
of interest on the outstanding liability for each period. 
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Operating Lease s 
Assets acquired as leases where a significant portion of risks and rewards of ownership are 
retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease . Operating lease charges are recognised 
in the Profit and Loss account on a straight line basis over the lease term. 

A.13 Earnings Per Share 

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with the IND AS ·33 ' 
Earning per Share' prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006. Basic 
Earning per Share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year by the weighted 
average number of Equity Share outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is 
computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year by the weighted number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
share. 

A.14 Taxes on Income 

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the 
comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or equity. 

Current Tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on the tax rates and laws that are 
enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date. 

De fe rre d tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary difference between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used 
in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in · the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax 
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period. 

A.IS Impairment o f Assets:· 

The Company tests for impairments at the close of the accounting period if an d only if there a re 
indications that suggest a possible reduction in the recoverable value of an asset. If the 
recoverable value amount of an Asset, i.e. the net realisable value or the economic value in use 
of a cash generating unit, is lower than the carrying amount of the Asset the difference is 
provided for as impairment. However, if subsequently the position reverses and the recoverable 
amount become higher than the then carrying value the provision to the extent of the then 
difference is reversed, but not higher than the amount provided for. 
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A.16 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:-

Provision is recognized only when there is a present obligation as a resu lt of past events and 
when reliable estimates of the amount of the obligation can be made. Contingent liability is 
disclosed for: -

a) Possible Obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the 
control of the company or 

b) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation or reliable estimates of the amount of the 
obligation cannot be made. Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial 
statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realized. 
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Note 36 

i. The company has not received any in timation from the suppliers regarding their status 
under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprise development Act 2006 and hence 
disclosures, if any relating to amounts unpaid as at year end together with interest payable 
as required under the said Act have not been given. 

ii. Disclosure of related party transaction as required by lND AS - 24 Related Party 
Disclosure: 

K M ey anagement P ersonne an elf re abves as on dth· I . 3 1 032020 are as un d er: 
Relationship Name 
Whole-time Director Mr B.K. Bodhanwala 
Managing Director Mr Gaurav Thanky 
Non-Executive Director Dr M.A. Bodhanwala 
Director & CFO (KMP) Mr. A.B. Bodhanwala 
Company in which KMP is interested Ohara Petrochemicals P. Ltd 
Firm in which KMP is substantially V R Industries 
interested 

Note: Related parties and these relationships are as identified by Management and relied 
upon by the auditors. 

T i 'h ransact ons Wit Key Personne I d i h ur ng t e year: 
Particulars Nature of Payment 2019-20 2018-19 

B.K. Bodhanwala Managerial 
Remuneration 3,00,000 3,00,000 
Other Perquisites 56,333 38,794 
Guarantees given 9,00,00,000 9,00,00,000 
Closing Balance of 
Unsecured loan 30,04,254 30,04,254 

A.B. Bodhanwala Managerial 
Remuneration 24,00,000 15,00,000 
Other Perquisites 240 200 
Loan received - 12,92,770 
Loan repaid 6,98406 7,51,236 
Guarantees given 9,00,00,000 9,00,00,000 
Interest 3,60,000 3,90,000 
Closing Balance of 
un secu red loan 15,54,353 26,12,759 

M.A. Bodhanwala Guarantees Given 9,00,00,000 9,00,00,000 
Gaurav Thanky Managerial 

Remuneration 18,00,000 18,00,000 
Guarantees given 9,00,00,000 9,00,00,000 

Ohara Petrochemicals Purchase of goods 7,50,91,8 12 17,78,70,570 
Pvt Ltd Sales of goods 17,51,04,801 19,18,85,713 

Security Deposit 3,57,64,000 3,57,64,000 
Closing balance on 
account of purchase (85,08,411) 51, 13,972 
Closing balance on 
account of Sale 44,09,215 1,08,68,066 

V.R. Industries Sales of goods - 3 1,76,650 
Repayment of Security 
deposit - 1,21 ,11,000 
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iii . CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS 

PARTICULARS 2019-20 2018-19 
(Rs) (Rs) 

CIF Value of Imports USD 19710 15,03,637 -

IV. Expenditure / Earning in Foreign Currency: Nil (P.Y. Nil). 

v. ~~~~~~~~~--------------------~~~~~~~-r~~~~~~-' 
Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019 
Income Tax Demand - TDS TAX 8,95,389 10,04,340 

VI. As per the IND AS -19 "Employee Benefits" , the disclosure as defined are given below: 

Def"med Benefit Plan 

I) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation 
Particulars Gratuity_ 

2019-20 2018-19 
Defined Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 18,76,819 15,35,137 
Current Service Cost 3,37,717 2,58,738 
Interest Cost 1,25,106 1,01,209 
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) 3,72,468 (18,265) 
Past Service cost - -

Benefits paid - -

Defined Benefit obligation at the end of the year 27,12,110 18,76,819 

III Reconciliation of opening and closi~g_ balances of fair value of Plan Assets 
Particulars Gratuity 

2019-20 2018-19 
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 8,59,947 6,31,516 
Return on Plan Assets 69,862 28,31 
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) - -

Employer Contribution 3,00,000 2,00,000 
Benefits paid - -
Fair value of Plan Assets at year end 12,29,809 8,59,947 

III) Reconciliation of fair value of Assets and Obligation 
Particulars Gratuity 

2019-20 2018-19 
Fair Value of Plan Assets 12,29,809 8,59,947 
Present value of obligation 27,12,110 18,76,819 
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet (Surplus / (14,82,301) (10,16,872) 
(Deficit) 

IV) Expenses recognized during the year 
Particulars Gratuity 

2019-20 2018-19 
Current Service Cost 3,37,7 17 2,58,738 
Interest Cost 64,449 58,843 
Past Service Cost and Loss (Gain) on curtailment and - -
settlement 
Total included in :Employee Benefit Expenses 4 ,02,166 3 , 17,581 
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V) Actuarial assumption 

Particulars Gratuity 
2019-20 2018-19 

Discount Rate 6.55% 7.60% 
Salary Growth Rate 7.00% 7.00% 
Withdrawal Rates 10% at younger 10% at 

ages reducing younger ages 
to 2% at older reducing to 2% 

ages at older ages 

VI) Sensitivity Analysis 
Particulars As at 31·t March, 2020 As at 31·t March, 2019 

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 
Change in Discounting Rate (delta 26,06,559 28,25,770 18,10,517 19,48,006 
effect of + / -0 .5%) 
Change in Salary Growth Rate (delta 28,22,591 26,08,147 19,42,769 18,10,144 
effect of + / -0 .5%) 
Change in Withdrawal rate (delta 27,02,445 27,21,889 18,73,472 18,79,925 
effect of + / -0.1 %) 

Sensitivity analysis is performed by varying a single parameter while keeping all the other 
parameters unchanged. 

Sensitivity analysis fails to focus on the interrelationship between underlying parameters. 
Hence, the results may vary if two or more variables are changed simultaneously 

The method used does not indicate anything about the likelihood of change in any 
parameter and the extent of the change if any. 

vii. Impact of COVID - 19 (Global Pandemic) 
Consequent to the nationwide lockdown announced by the Government of India, The 
Company's Plant and Offices were shut down from March 23, 2020 onwards. Since the 
gradual easing of the lockdown from 25th April 2020 onwards, and in line with the various 
directions of the government, the company's plant has commenced operations in the 
phased manner, in the line of the market demand. The COVID-19 crises have caused the 
significant disturbance and slowdown of the economic activities. The Company's 
management has done the assessment of the situation, including the liquidity positions 
and the recoverability and the recoverability and carrying value of the assets and liabilities 
as at March 31,2020 and concluded that there are no material adjustments that are 
required in the financial statements as of March, 2020. However the impact assessment of 
COVID- 19 is a continuing process given the uncertainty associated with its nature and 
durations. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's Financial Statements may be 
differing from that estimates as the date of approve of these financial statements. The 
Company will continue to monitor any material changes as the situ ation evolves. 
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viii. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, rearra nged or re-casted wherever necessary. 

ix. The outstanding balances of Trade Payables, Unsecured Loans, Trade Receivables, Deposits 
and Loans & Advances are subject to confi rma tion. 
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